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INTRODUCTION BY THE PRESIDENT
OF THE COMPANY

In 2012 and 2013, Aero continued to implement its strategy defined in 2008.
Significant results were achieved in the aerostructures area, i.e. in the field of cooperation programs initiated in 2000. The Built-toPrint programs, supplemented by two Design-to-Build programs in 2011, saw their fastest development to date. The last two years
witnessed a dynamic development of systematic outsourcing activities in the division and the volume of outsourcing grew
significantly. newly received orders contribute to ongoing diversification of program portfolio and will secure significant increase
of sales in the following years.
Strategic purchasing, especially tapping local suppliers, became key element of our company’s development and its strengthening
strongly contributes to the core activities of the company – highly integrated assemblies of complex aircraft and helicopter
structures.
Also the defence & mro division succeeded in developing its current programs. Collaboration with several European, African
and Asian countries strengthened as well as broadened within the L-39 and L-59 programs. In addition to standard user support,
several modernizing elements were prepared in the L-159 program, keeping the product in top shape. Also the older L-39 program
saw some modernization to respond to needs of current users.
Last but not least, an independent engineering division was created to serve as the third pillar of operation of the company.
Earlier, it served almost exclusively the needs of the Aerostructures division. By separating from the rest of the enterprise,
the division became more oriented towards external clients.
In the last two years, the company significantly developed its core asset – qualified personnel, whose number grew by more than
600. Our systematic program of hiring and workforce development has been successful, sending a clear message about the
positive outlook of the Czech aviation industry, integrated in the Confederation of the Czech Aviation Industry, to all people
interested in working in this field. Also, the individual operational processes were improved – an important goal stretching to the
upcoming year. This does not concern mere formal changes, but regards actual strengthening the role of the internal customer,
defining procedural goals and improving quality, lead time and costs by systematically managing risks and limitations on procedural
level as well as using our integrated management system and WInG.

In THE LAST TWO yEARS, THE COMPAny SIGnIFICAnTLy
DEVELOPED ITS CORE ASSET – QUALIFIED PERSOnnEL,
WHOSE nUMBER GREW By MORE THAn
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COMPANY PROFILE

CORPORATE PROFILE

AEROSTRUCTURES DIVISIOn

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (hereinafter Aero) is a joint-stock company incorporated on 15th December 2011 (originally
named TULAREO a.s., the new name AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. has been registered in the commercial register since 19th
September 2012). The seat of the company is located in Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště no. 374, ZIP 250 70. The company was
registered in the commercial register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, file no. 17749 on 15th December 2011, its
registration number is 24194204, VAT number CZ24194204.

The Aerostructures Division of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a 1st and 2nd tier supplier to leading world aerospace manufacturers. Aero focuses mainly on manufacturing and assembly of complex aerostructures of high level of finalization, including
integration and testing of systems, supply management and final inspection. Aero also has a considerable potential in the field
of production of landing gears and composites. The Aerostructures Division is involved in the complete life cycle of commercial and
military projects, drawing on the company's extensive experience in the aviation industry, as acquired during more than ninety
years of its existence. Aero combines its expertise with the latest technologies, methods of testing and principles of lean production.

According to Terms of split-up of AERO Vodochody a.s., AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a successor company of AERO
Vodochody a.s., continuing the glorious history of the original enterprise.
Till the end of 2006, almost 100% of shares of AERO Vodochody a.s. was held by the Czech Consolidation Agency. Penta became
sole shareholder of the company on 4th January 2007, initiating restructuring of the company in the same year. From 2007 to 2011,
AERO Vodochody a.s. achieved accumulated net profit of CZK 1,523 million.

FROM 2012 TO 2013,
AERO VODOCHODy A.S. ACHIEVED
ACCUMULATED nET PROFIT OF CZK

544.7

MILLION

By 1st January 2012, the manufacturing part of AERO Vodochody a.s. was separated to create AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.,
a company also 100% owned by Penta. The registered capital of Aero is CZK 1,002 million and it is fully paid-up. In 2012-2013,
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. reported net profit of CZK 544.7 million.
Aero is the biggest manufacturer of aviation technology in the Czech Republic. The company partakes in development, production,
sale and maintenance of both military and civil aviation technology. Aero chiefly focuses on collaboration with leading aircraft
manufacturers through international cooperation projects and, as a part of the company’s military program, it has been a long-time
partner of armed forces of several countries, especially the Armed Forces of the Czech Republic. Aero implemented a quality
management system certified to the AS 9100/ISO 9001 and the company has all the relevant certificates issued under domestic
and international standards regarding the company as a whole as well as individual procedures.

Aero continuously expands its customer portfolio by adding leading global aircraft manufacturers. Since 2009, Aero has been
striving to achieve a balance between production programs and risk-sharing development programs to create a mix of long-term,
highly prospective contracts. The main customers of the Aerostructures Division are Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation (programs
S-76D, UH-60M, S-70i), Embraer (KC-390), Sonaca (Bombardier CSeries), Messier-Bugatti-Dowty (Airbus A320), Latecoere
(Embraer E-170/190), Alenia Aermacchi (A321, C-27J), and others.

EnGInEERInG DIVISIOn
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. provides a full range of engineering services
– from concept design to airframe and system certification employing stateof the-art engineering practices. Thanks to its flexible and efficient structure,
the division is able to offer a wide range of product development services –
from assembly development work packages including risk-sharing programs
(such as CSeries and KC-390 programs) to OEM engineering services
including structural work packages and support services. Aero employs more
than 150 experienced development engineers, including designers, analysts,
technical authors and system specialists. Aero has extensive technical
experience with the development of commercial and military aircraft.

150

AERO EMPLOyS MORE THAn 150 ExPERIEnCED
DEVELOPMEnT EnGInEERS, InCLUDInG DESIGnERS,
AnALySTS, TECHnICAL AUTHORS AnD SySTEM SPECIALISTS.
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COMPANY PROFILE

DEFEnCE & MRO DIVISIOn

AUTHORIZATIOnS, CERTIFICATES AnD ACCREDITATIOnS OF THE COMPAny

The Defence & MRO (Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul) division of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. focuses on support and
development of its final products – i.e. L-39, L-59 and L-159 aircraft, as well as providing various services in the field of aircraft
repairing, modernizing, modifying and aviation technology testing.

Following a comprehensive audit of regulatory compliance, AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. holds authorization in the field of
construction of aircraft and parts (under EASA Part-21/23/25), manufacture (under EASA Part 21), maintenance (under EASA
Part 145) and maintenance personnel training (under EASA Part 147, Part 66). Aero’s quality management system is set up to
continuously comply with all requirements defined by EASA, Czech Civil Aviation Authority and Ministry of Defence of the Czech
Republic.

The L-159 system includes L-159 ALCA/B/T aircraft as well as integrated logistics support, ground personnel training, mission
planning and debriefing tools and other equipment. The system is well-established within the Czech Air Force. The L-159 ALCA
single-seat light combat aircraft was introduced in the Armed Forces of the Czech Republic in 2000; the L-159T two-seat training
aircraft was introduced in 2007. The L-159 aircraft perform a number of tasks ranging from advanced and operational training and
ground forces air support to reconnaissance missions and air defence. They regularly participate in international nATO military
exercises (Tactical Leadership Programme, nATO Air Meet, Clean Hunter or Flying Rhino).
Aero continued supporting the users of L-39 and L-59 aircraft. The Defence & MRO division offers wide portfolio of services to
L-39/L-59 customers, including service-life extensions and overhauls as well as modernization of all systems of the aircraft.
The Defence & MRO division does not limit its activities to its own products but rather offers customers services related to modifying
and testing their own aircraft. The activities of Defence & MRO are secured by resources in the field of aircraft and aviation
products construction design as well as resources in the field of logistics. The division also possesses its own aviation testing
facility, premises and jigs, as well as testing equipment necessary for aircraft manufacture and maintenance. Through a daughter
company Clarex, the division provides support and maintenance of DV-2 jet engines.

Aero has the certificate necessary to prepare draft catalogue data regarding products under Act no. 309/2000 Coll. It is also the
holder of Ae270 and L-39 civil aircraft type certificates. The company has newly acquired maintenance certificate for L-39 Albatros
in the civil (demilitarized) version.
Aero implemented and duly maintains an integrated management system (IMS) certified according to ISO 9001:2008, AS9100,
rev. C, ČOS 051622 (AQAP 2110), ISO 14001:2004, OHSAS 18001:2007 a BS 25999:2-2007.
The company holds accreditation of special processes under nADCAP requirements for heat treating of metal materials, chemical
processes for surface protection of materials, composites production and non-destructive testing of materials. non-destructive
testing of materials is also accredited according to the requirements of nAS 401 and Czech national nDT Board.
In the 4th quarter of 2013, preparatory works regarding modification of the IMS were launched in response to changes in regulatory
requirements related to amendment of the Civil Aviation Act no. 49/1997 Coll. and derived military aviation regulations.

PORTFOLIO OF COMPAnIES

L-159T1

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is a 100% owner of Clester Trading a.s., being in turn the sole shareholder of Clarex Investments a.s. Clarex Investments a.s. was incorporated to provide overhauls of engines for L-59 aircraft and it has been successfully
performing the mentioned task. By broadening the portfolio of production and maintenance resources of the group, Aero supports
current L-59 customers and opens way for further development of the company in the military area (servicing, maintenance
and repairs). Effective as of 1st May 2013, AERO Vodochody a.s. underwent a spin-off by merger, whereby the entire production
section of the company was transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s., together with the abovementioned Clester Trading
a.s. In the original AERO Vodochody a.s. currently remain Letiště Vodochody a.s. and Rotortech Aero Composites Ltd.

two-seat training-combat
version converted from
L-159A, currently used
by Czech Air Force
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COMPANY PROFILE

STRATEGIC GOALS

GOALS FOR 2014

Aero saw significant business achievements in 2012. However, the key focus of the period was on intensive work on implementing
new programs and improving performance by more than 20% per year.

• Supply of first sets of all four packages of KC-390 program
• Improving performance (deadlines and quality), focusing on the newly implemented programs of Aerostructures Division
• Strengthening supply chain in the area of parts
• Continuing in successful broadening of customer portfolio consisting of both civil and military users of L-39 aircraft
• Outsourcing 45 thousand hours
• Launching serial production of composites

Total growth of aviation cooperation market, together with significant effort on the part of Aero’s team in the preceding years
and good positioning of the company in the market, brought Aero three new significant contracts in 2012 and 2013 (two of them
regarding Airbus A320 aircraft family and the third concerning supply of Sikorsky S-70i cockpits). Aero also managed to significantly
broaden the scope of collaboration with Messier-Bugatti-Dowty within the existing contract. When full scale operation is reached
in 2015, these contracts will represent CZK 300 million of added value for the company.

THE KEy FOCUS OF THE PERIOD WAS On InTEnSIVE
WORK On IMPLEMEnTInG nEW PROGRAMS AnD IMPROVInG
PERFORMAnCE By MORE THAn 20% PER yEAR.

20

%

GOALS FOR THE PERIOD EnDInG 2016
• Obtaining a new risk-sharing program
• Successful development and supply of KC-390 prototypes
• Launching serial production of CSeries
• Developing supplier chain in the area of parts in the scope of 80 thousand hours per year
• Obtaining customers for L-159 aircraft
• Diversifying the program of D&MRO division

The Engineering Division of Aero carried on working on KC-390 and CSeries risk-sharing programs. The KC-390 program passed
a CDR (Critical Design Review) milestone and Aero focused its effort on detailed design and preparation of industrialization for
the first supplies planned for 2014. In the CSeries program, Aero successfully supplied two testing and three prototype assemblies
and initiated serial production of wing fixed leading edges.
Regarding operational activities, Aero successfully outsourced 23 thousand hours of work in 2012 and 46 thousand hours of work
in 2013. At the same time, 5 suppliers were successfully certified according to the WInG system. Aero also obtained nADCAP
certification of composite production. However, commercial production of composites was not launched – a challenge
to be answered in 2014.

Embraer KC-390
A new multi-purpose military transport aircraft
of medium size, designed for transportation
of cargo and people, a direct competitor
of the C-130 Hercules by Lockheed Martin.
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MARKET SITUATION

According to the data and predictions of Teal Group Corporation, worldwide aircraft production has now historically reached its peak
volumes and the industry is expected to grow further in the upcoming years. The two world’s biggest aircraft manufacturers,
Boeing and Airbus, have achieved the highest deliveries on record (more than 1,000 civil aircraft per year) and the growing number of orders indicates that this trend will strengthen in the years to come.

Civil helicopter market is seeing a renewed growth after the crisis of 2009 and 2010. In the near future, a mild and steady growth
is expected (CAGR 2012 – 2018 equals to 6.47%). In the segment of civil medium and bigger transport helicopters, a part of which
is the S-76D, last years have seen growing demands regarding effectiveness and safety. This resulted in steady modernization in
the form of bigger helicopters equipped with latest navigation and safety features.

Current state of global aircraft production offers unseen growth opportunities to Aero both within existing and new programs. Aero
especially focuses on helicopter, regional and single-aisle jet aircraft and military transport aircraft.

DELIVERIES OF UH-60 HELICOPTERS – 2021 OUTLOOK:

Source: Teal Group corp.

World aircraft production: History and forecast

HELICOPTER MARKET

number
of deliveries

Until
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

In sum

UH-60

3,117

170

145

135

130

128

124

130

130

130

126

4,465

S-76D brings into this popular and wide range of helicopters state-of-the-art avionics and safety equipment, which makes the
helicopter interesting for the key, dynamically growing Oil&Gas market. The S-76 program achieved several important milestones
in the last years. The first was the certification of a new version S-76D by the FAA in 2012. The second was an order for 26 helicopters by Bristow Helicopters, one of the biggest operators of helicopters used to service oil platforms (so-called Oil&Gas), a vital
market segment for the entire S-76 line. The order by Bristow Helicopters is an important confirmation of the strong position
of S-76s in this vital market. The last key event was the supply of the first S-76D helicopter to the mentioned Bristow Helicopters.

DELIVERIES OF S-76 – 2021 OUTLOOK:

World helicopter production: History and forecast

number
of deliveries

Source: Teal Group corp.

S-76

Do r.
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

In sum

816

20

28

28

32

32

26

26

24

24

24

1,124

The difference between the expected deliveries from AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. and the prediction is due to the period of
assembly of the helicopter in the United States.

Military helicopter market experienced a significant growth between 2006 and 2012, especially owing to the continuation
of military operations in Iraq and Afghanistan. Overall decrease of the market is expected in the following years as a result
of terminating the military operations. Uncertainties and cuts in the budget of the United States are another factor negatively
impacting the market. As a result, decline in demand for UH-60M/S-70i helicopters is to be expected.
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MARKET SITUATION

REGIOnAL AnD SInGLE-AISLE CIVIL JET AIRCRAFT

MILITARy AnD TRAnSPORT AIRCRAFT

Single-aisle civil jet aircraft market is defined by two competing manufacturers – Boeing and Airbus. Aero is currently supplying
fuselage panels, sub-assemblies and landing gear parts for the highly successful aircraft family A320.

The highly specific military and transport aircraft market will see a change in the form of KC-390 aircraft, a key element in Aero’s
portfolio, which will play a major part in the years to come. The successful C-130J, a sovereign in the field of tactical missions for
more than fifty years, is about to get a serious competition. Another project of Aero in this field is the production of center wing box
for C-27J Spartan, an airplane, which won the trust of the Department of Defense of Australia in spite of the U.S. JCA (Joint Cargo
Aircraft) program being cancelled. 10 aircraft were ordered.

Boeing retook the position of the leader of single-aisle civil aircraft with 1,203 orders in 2012, interrupting the success of Airbus,
which lasted for several years. However, the European manufacturer managed a comeback in 2013, emerging as the leader again.
In 2013, Airbus registered 1,162 orders of A320.

Source: Teal Group corp.

Deliveries of the A320 family in the years 2004 to 2012

The state of the regional jet aircraft influences two programs: the important CSeries development program and a long established
program of supplying hinges and internal structure of doors of E-170/190 aircraft. In 2013, Aero started supplying the first serially
produced parts for the CSeries aircraft. The E-Jet family of aircraft will get modernized, thus responding to the demand for lower
operational costs. Aero will bid for continuation in the program.
Regional aircraft market is undergoing modernization of the fleet aimed at achieving operational savings. Smaller airplanes such
as CRJ 100 and 200 are being replaced by CRJ 700s and CRJ 1000s. This trend favors the use of the newly developed CSeries
aircraft, as well as the family of modified E-Jets. As of 3rd March 2014, the CSeries family registered 203 binding orders.

Military transport aircraft market

light utility
up to 4t

small
4 - 15t

alenia c-27J spartan
airbus c-235/295

tactical
16 - 25t

embraer kc-390
lockheed c-130

strategic aircraft
more than 25t

airbus a400m, boeing c-17
kawasaki c-2

Embraer registered the total of 60 potential orders of KC-390 aircraft, with Brazil ranking first among potential clients,
followed by Columbia and also the Czech Republic. The market as such could currently accommodate up to 700 KC-390s. Embraer
is considering a civilian version of this multipurpose aircraft. C-27J production should cover the production up to 2017 based upon
current orders.

The E-170/5 family generated the total of 391 orders in 2012, creating a backlog of 45 airplanes at the end of the year. At the same
year, the E-190/5 family, following on the significant order by JetBlue, saw 702 cumulated orders, leaving the current backlog of
140 airplanes. In 2013, the backlog of the entire E-jet family amounted to 264 aircraft. Backlog of modernized E2 versions reached
the number of 200 aircraft.
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HISTORY OF AERO

BEGInnInGS

AGE OF JETS

Aero was founded on 25th February 1919 with the
administrative seat in Prague Old Town and
production plant located in Prague-Bubeneč.
Aero celebrated its 90th anniversary in
2009, ranking among the world’s oldest
manufacturers of aviation technology.
From the very beginning, Aero focused
on development and production of aircraft
and aircraft parts, as well as aircraft repairs.
As early as 1919, Aero launched its first in-house
produced aircraft, the Aero A-1. Soon, the
Ministry of Defence ordered mass production of
the aircraft. Designed for military pilot training,
Aero A-1 foresaw what would become a typical
product of the company in the distant future.

new facilities designed entirely for production of jet aircraft were built in Vodochody on 1953. Production started in the same year.
Several Czechoslovak aviation enterprises participated in the production focusing on large-scale mass production of licensed
Soviet MiG-15 and therefrom derived types. Supersonic fighter aircraft MiG-19 and MiG-21 were produced in Aero during the 60s
and 70s. These aircraft paved the way for domestic training jet aircraft programs, namely L-29 Delfín and L-39 Albatros.

In-HOUSE BUILT JET AIRCRAFT

A-1
First in-house designed military training aircraft

The second half of the 50s saw an ever growing demand for jet trainers. Efforts concentrated on developing an optimized airframe
and a domestic jet engine resulted in the maiden flight of L-29 in 1959. The final milestone on Aero’s way to mass producing jet
trainers was reached, however, near Moscow in the summer of 1961 when an L-29 Delfín won comparative tests of three different
prototypes and was declared the optimal trainer of the entire Eastern Bloc. Production and deliveries ran smoothly for ten more
years, during which the second generation of more powerful and efficient L-39 aircraft was developed. Production of L-39 remained
the core activity in production and assembly halls of Aero also in the 70s and 80s. Till this day, the excellent training features of this
reasonably priced aircraft are enjoyed by numerous air forces all over the world.

Soon to follow were first international customers starting with Finland. Aero produced many Czechoslovak “firsts” in the era of the
First Czechoslovak Republic: Aero constructed the first domestic prototype military aircraft, designed the first dedicated cabin
airliner, the first twin-engine aircraft, the first seaplane with domestically constructed floats, presented the first braced high-wing
monoplane and paved the way for practical design of wooden cantilever wing.

The L-39 Albatros family underwent a significant expansion in
the following years and formed
the perfect base for further development. With the 90s came integration
of western avionics and standards, as
well as a more powerful American engine
and global equipment, starting a new chapter in the history of the company. The new system
of combat and training labelled L-159 included not only
advanced training and the light combat aircraft L-519 but also integrated logistics support,
mission planning and debriefing and ground training system.

WAR PRODUCTIOn

PRESEnT DAy

The company’s expanded resources were fully used and developed during the time of German occupation. At that time, Aero was
producing stressed-skin semi-monocoque structures fully equipped for reconnaissance and training missions – Focke-Wulf 189
and Siebel Si 204. As soon as the war was over, the nationalized Aero continued to produce and repair aircraft. Modified types of
German airplanes were produced for both military and civil needs of Czechoslovakia. Shortly after the war, a new noteworthy type
was introduced – the high-performance twin-engine four-seat Aero 45.

Since 2000, Aero has been exploring a new path, obtaining its first cooperation program – the complete S-76 helicopter ready for
installation of dynamic parts for the American Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation. In 2007, Aero was 100% acquired by Penta investment
group, which began restructuring the company. Global markets opened for Aero, which began acquiring additional cooperation
programs, including the first risk-sharing projects. Aero thus became first-class partner of leading global aviation companies.

ExPAnSIOn
Higher-performance trainers followed and after moving the production to a new plant in Prague’s Vysočany quarter (1923) a new
family of reconnaissance aircraft, bombers and biplane trainers was established in the form of Aero A-11 and A-12 aircraft.
Military pilots soon became famous by breaking records and winning races in Aero airplanes. Aero, being a private enterprise
owned by Dr. Vladimír Kabeš at that time, became chief supplier of the Ministry of Defence and the Ministry of Public Works (civil aviation).

22 |

L-29 Delfín
First jet trainer designed
in Czechoslovakia
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AERO IN DATA

1919-1999

1919 1921 1923 1925 1929

1932 1937 1938 1939 1943

aero – továrna létadel
(Aero – aircraft factory)
founded in Prague

a-100, family
of military biplanes
(bomber
and reconnaissance
aircraft)

a-10, first civilian
airliner

a-1, first military
aircraft designed
and built by Aero

a-11, family of military
biplanes (bomber
and reconnaissance
aircraft)

De Havilland dh-50,
passenger aircraft built
under British license

a-34 “Blackbird”,
first in the line of light
sports and training
biplanes

mb-200, all-metal
bomber aircraft
manufactured under
French license
(Marcel Bloch)

a-304, twin-engine
low-wing military
aircraft
a-300, twin-engine
low-wing bomber
aircraft

c4/c-104
(Bucker Bu-131
Jungmann) training
and aerobatic biplane

c-3 (Siebel Si-204D),
twin-engine military
aircraft

1947 1953 1954 1958 1959

1962 1968 1986 1997 1998

ae-45, twin-engine
civil aircraft

Maiden flight of mig-21
Fishbed, supersonic
fighter aircraft produced
under Soviet license
(194 aircraft supplied
from 1962 to 1972)
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Aero moved from
Prague to a new plant
in vodochody

Maiden flight of mig-15,
jet fighter aircraft
produced under Soviet
license (3,405 aircraft
supplied from 1954
to 1962)

Maiden flight of mig-19
Farmer, supersonic
fighter aircraft produced
under Soviet license
(103 aircraft supplied
from 1958 to 1962)

Maiden flight
of l-29 delfín, first
jet trainer designed
in Czechoslovakia
(3,500 aircraft supplied
from 1963 to 1974)

Maiden flight of in-house
designed and constructed
jet trainer l-39 albatros
(more than 2,900
aircraft supplied
from 1971 to 1999)

Maiden flight of in-house
designed and constructed
jet trainer l-39ms
– exported
as L-59 Super Albatros
(60 aircraft supplied from
1992 to 1996)

Maiden flight of singleseat light combat
aircraft l-159 alca
(72 aircraft ordered
by the Czech Air Force)

boeing enters Aero
(acquiring 35%
of shares)

Starting a joint-enterprise
with Taiwanese AIDC
to develop and produce
Ae270 civil aircraft
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2000-2013

AERO IN DATA

2000

2001

2002

2004

First l-159 supplied to the Czech Air Force

Start of production of f-18 Super Hornet
gun bay door for Boeing St. Louis

Maiden flight of l-159b
two-seat advanced training
aircraft

Supply of l-159 aircraft
for the Czech Air Force
completed

Start of production of passenger door
polished skins for boeing 757
Maiden flight of first ae270 prototype
Start of production of s-76 helicopter
for Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation

Start of production of sets of parts
and subassemblies of boeing 767 for BAE
SySTEMS (currently Spirit AeroSystems)

Boeing withdraws
from Aero

2005
ae270 aircraft obtained
an EASA Type Certificate
Czech government announces
the plan to privatize Aero

2006

2007

ae270 aircraft
obtained an FAA Type
Certificate

Aero acquired by Penta private equity group
l-159t1 advanced trainers supplied
to the Czech Air Force
Dissolution of joint-enterprise with AIDC

Aero signed a long-term
frame agreement regarding
post-warranty support
of the l-159 squadron

Penta bought the British Rotortech
Composites Ltd.
Start of production of centre wing box
of c-27J spartan for Alenia Aeronautica

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

Start of production of door subassemblies
of embraer 170/190 for Latecoere

Aero increased the registered capital of AERO
Vodochody, a.s., by in-kind contribution

Aero signed a contract with SAAB
to produce Jas-39 gripen pylons

Aero acquired Rotortech Aero Composites
Limited by purchase

Black Hawk uh-60m cockpit
production agreement signed
with Sikorsky

Aero partnered with Embraer to develop, design
and produce kc-390 aircraft. Aero is responsible
for design and production of wing leading edge,
technological development and production
of all seven doors, ramp and rear fuselage

PZL Mielec chose Aero to supply
international version
of Black Hawk s-70i helicopter
cockpits

Alenia Aermacchi chose Aero
to supply airbus a321 14A section
fuselage panels

Aero acquired Clarex Investments a.s.
by purchase
First international risk-sharing project
agreement signed with Belgian sonaca
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Transfer of production
from Technometra Radotín a.s.
completed

Aero extended Messier-Bugatti-Dowty contract
by adding production of airbus a320 landing gear
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ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

CORPORATE OFFICERS AnD MAnAGEMEnT
board of directors as of 31st december 2013
Chairman:
Ladislav Šimek
Members:
Petr Brychta
Ondřej Benáček

LADISLAV ŠIMEK
President

dIego tomaz
Dir. Business excel.

mIchal flídr
VP Finance

zdeněk mleJnek
Dir. Quality assur.

Petr ŘehoŘ
Director Strategy

davId Pacola
Director Security

AEROSTRUCTURES
DIVISIOn

DEFEnCE & MRO
DIVISIOn

EnGInEERInG
DIVISIOn

PhIlIPPe mIchel
EVP Aerostructures

Jan štechr
EVP Defence & MRO

gerrard mccluskey
VP Engineering

manufacturIng
Director

mIloslav hostaša
VP BD & Sales

mIchal kaPrálek
Design

monIka kowalczyková
Director Programs

Petr kudrna
VP D&MRO Programs

tomáš hIbš
Stress

Josef šonský
Director BD & Sales

mIloš trnobranský
Director Operations

martIn Žaloudík
Configuration

karel klíma
Dir. Strategic sourcing
torsten behnke
Development programs
Jan PrIškIn
Director Supply chain
zdeněk mleJnek
Dir. Quality control
vladImír müller
Dir. Assembly Operations

30 |

tomas vlček
Director HR

supervisory board as of 31st december 2013
Chairman:
Zdeněk Sýkora
Members:
Jan Borýsek
Jan Kříž
company management as of 31st december 2013
Ladislav Šimek
President
Petr Řehoř
Director Strategy
Michal Flídr
VP Finance
Tomáš Vlček
Director Human Resources
David Pacola
Director Security
aerostructures division management
Philippe Michel
EVP Aerostructures
Jan Priškin
Director Supply Chain
Karel Klíma
Director Strategic Sourcing
Zdeněk Mlejnek
Director Quality Assurance
Josef Šonský
Director Business Development & Sales
Monika Kowalczyková Director Production Programs
defence & mro division management
Jan Štechr
EVP Defence & MRO
Miroslav Hostaša
Business Development & Sales Director
Miloš Trnobranský
Director MRO Operations
Petr Kudrna
VP Defence & MRO Programs
engineering division management
Gerrard McCluskey
VP Engineering
Michal Kaprálek
Head of Design
Tomáš Hibš
Head of Stress
Martin Žaloudík
Head of Configuration
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KEY EVENTS OF 2012 AND 2013

2012

2013

MARCH

APRIL

JUNE

JANUARY

MAY

JUNE

new collective agreement signed

Dispatch of the first prototype
of CSeries wing fixed leading edge

Framework agreement signed
with the Bulgarian Ministry of Defence
regarding overhaul of 6 L-39ZA
aircraft to be completed by the
end of 2015

Aero received nADCAP accreditation
of composite production

Completion of spin-off by merger
of AERO Vodochody a.s. and AERO
Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s., whereby
all production and related activities
were transformed to AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s..

The number of Aero’s employees
surpassed 1,500

APRIL

Operation started in our new
composite production plant
Successful Business Continuity
Management System (BCMS)
certification under BS 25999-2 standard

Aero ranked first in Sodexo 2013
Employer of the region competition.

500th gun bay door manufactured

Completion of repairs of L-159 after
eight years of operation (PP2000) for
the Armed Forces of the Czech Republic

Conclusion of the composite
aileron project

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

JULY

SEPTEMBER

DECEMBER

Agreement signed with Alenia
Aermacchi to produce fuselage
panels for Airbus A321

Agreement signed with PZL Mielec,
a Polish member of Sikorsky Aircraft
Corporation group, to supply cockpits
for Sikorsky S-70i helicopters.

Prime minister of Iraq, nouri al-Maliki,
visited Aero Vodochody a.s.

Delivery of last CSeries fixed
leading edge prototypes

Aero and Vodochody Airport opened
a day care center for their employees.

Aero ranked 7th in the Exporter
of the year competition

Completion of spare parts supply under
agreement entered with the Ministry
of Defence of Vietnam in 2011

NOVEMBER
5-axis CnC machine Trimill launched

Aero became the Employer of the year
and overall winner of the Czech Patron
competition organized by the Czech
Chamber of Commerce
First flight of FTV1 CSeries CS100
aircraft prototype

32 |

new manufacturing hall for landing
gears opened
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REPORT ON BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

AEROSTRUCTURES DIVISIOn
Development strategy of the Aerostructures Division is focusing on three key areas, namely aircraft assemblies, landing gears,
and composites. The division seeks a long-term balance between development (risk-sharing) and custom programs.
In accordance with the defined strategy, development capabilities of the division are continuously strengthened. This trend was
further supported in 2012 by separating the Engineering as an independent division.

DEVELOPMEnT STRATEGy OF THE AEROSTRUCTURES
DIVISIOn IS FOCUSInG On THREE KEy AREAS, nAMELy AIRCRAFT
ASSEMBLIES, LAnDInG GEARS, AnD COMPOSITES.

3

Programs of the aerostructures division
In 2012 and 2013, the Aerostructures division delivered assemblies for a total of 11 families of aircraft.

SIKORSKy S-76
Program description
• Sikorsky S-76 is a very successful twin-engine medium-sized commercial helicopter with a maximum take-off weight of 6 tons,
designed to carry up to 12 passengers.
• From the beginning of production in 1982, Sikorsky has delivered more than 700 helicopters to customers mainly in the United
States, Canada and Europe.
• Aero has been manufacturing the S-76 since 2000 and has delivered more than 350 helicopters so far.
In 2011, Aero started the serial production of the S-76D version, which gradually replaced the previous S-76C++ model.
• Since 2012, Aero has significantly ramped-up the production of the S-76D type, which was delivered to its first operators in December 2013.

Key events in the Aerostuctures Division included a new contract for cockpit deliveries for the international version of the Black
Hawk helicopter (S-70i) for PZL Mielec. At the beginning of 2013, Aero signed another new contract with Alenia Aermacchi
regarding deliveries of fuselage panels for the A321 aircraft. Aero has already set up a complete assembly line and is ready for
an aggressive ramp-up.
Moreover, a contract with Messier-Bugatti-Dowty regarding the manufacturing of landing gear sub-assemblies for the A320
aircraft family was renewed and its scope increased. Aero was also selected as the supplier of the CSeries CS300 wing fixed
leading edge, delivered all prototypes for CS100 and CS300 and started full serial production. Regarding the KC-390 program,
the first definition phase was completed, and an assembly line was set up during 2013.
The Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation program was also doing well. Sikorsky S-76D helicopter obtained its type certificate and
subsequently, Aero significantly ramped-up S-76D deliveries. Also, the production of UH-60M cockpits became fully developed
during 2013.

Product and role of aero
• Fully assembled and equipped helicopter ready for installation of dynamic parts (engines, gearbox and rotors).
• Full responsibility for production and supply chain.
• Production of approximately 45% of 8,000 various types of parts and components, including tubing and wiring harnesses.
• Helicopter fuselage assembly.
• Installation of avionic, hydraulic, electrical and fuel systems.
• Responsibility for final inspection.
• Responsibility for after-sales support.
Program outlook
• Aero is expecting annual deliveries of 32 units of the S-76D helicopter in the mid-term horizon.
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REPORT ON BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

EMBRAER KC-390
Program description
• A new multi-purpose military transport aircraft of medium size, designed for transportation of cargo and people, a direct
competitor to the C-130 Hercules by Lockheed Martin.
• The project was initiated by the Brazilian Air Force.
• 28 aircraft units ordered by the Brazilian Air Force with the commitment to partially finance their development.
• Brazil was followed by Columbia, Chile, Argentina, Portugal, and the Czech Republic, which also showed interest in buying
the aircraft.
• Aero is a strategic risk-sharing partner to Embraer.
• The first flight of KC-390 is expected in 2014; the aircraft is expected to enter into service in 2016.
Product and role of aero
• Aero is fully responsible for the development, industrialization, support in certification and production of the wing fixed leading edge.
• Aero is fully responsible for industrialization and production of all doors, cargo ramp and rear fuselage.
Program outlook
• Aero expects to start serial deliveries in 2016, with a delivery rate of 18 to 21 ship sets per year.
• In 2013 Embraer had registered the interest in 60 aircraft units.

BOMBARDIER CSERIES
Program description
• Bombardier CSeries aircraft is a new single-aisle aircraft for commercial traffic on short and medium lines. Two versions
of the aircraft (CS100 and CS300) will carry between 100 and 160 passengers.
• CSeries will have the lowest operating costs in its class thanks to the advanced airframe and engine design.
• Aero is a development and risk-sharing partner of the Belgian company Sonaca.
• Aero is the exclusive supplier of the wing fixed leading edge.
• In 2013, Aero completed all prototypes and started serial production.
Product and role of aero
• Fully assembled and equipped fixed part of the wing fixed leading edge ready for installation on the aircraft.
• Each assembly (the left and the right wing) contains more than 2,000 components.
• Aero is fully responsible for design, industrialization, certification and production.
Program outlook
• The first flight of the prototype took place in September 2013 and certification is expected for mid-2015.
• By the end of 2013, Bombardier registered 182 binding orders and 237 options and commitments.
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REPORT ON BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

SIKORSKy UH-60M AnD S-70I BLACK HAWK

ALEnIA C-27J SPARTAn

Program description
• Sikorsky S-70/UH-60 type is currently the most common type of military transport helicopter.
• UH-60M is the latest version used by the US and a number of other countries through US government Foreign Military Sales
program; S-70i is an export version.
• The contract between Aero and Sikorsky was concluded at the beginning of 2010 as a dual source contract; the first cockpit was
successfully delivered in June 2011. In 2013, Aero delivered 45 cockpits.
• The program has a very stable and long-term outlook.

Program description
• Alenia C-27J is a military tactical transport aircraft with a maximum payload of 11.5 tons.
• Among main users of the aircraft are the United States Air Force and countries of Central and Eastern Europe.
• Since 2007, Aero has been the sole supplier of the center wing box, which is a critical structural and system unit of the aircraft.
• Aero manufactures center wing boxes for all versions of the C-27J aircraft.
• Aero delivered 4 center wing box units in 2013.

Product and role of aero
• Aero delivers a fully equipped cockpit
for the UH-60M helicopter.
• Manufacturing of parts including
the application of special processes.
• Assembly of cockpit and installation
of electrical harnesses and flight safety parts.
• Responsibility for the after sales support

Product and role of aero
• Fully assembled, equipped and tested center wing box ready for installation on the aircraft.
• Aero is fully responsible for the production and supply chain of the program.
• 60% of 3,200 components are manufactured directly in Aero.
• The center wing box assembly includes integral tanks, pylons for engine installation, and mechanical systems of wings, fuel
and hydraulic lines and electrical harnesses.
• Aero is responsible for testing of all systems and for complete final inspection – the center wing box is supplied directly to the
production line without inspection at the customer site.
• Responsibility for the after sales support.
Program outlook
• It is expected that 350 aircraft units of the C-27J type will be sold throughout the world over the next ten years.
• In 2013, Australia signed a contract for 10 aircraft for the Australian Air Force, and more campaigns are on the way.
• Aero expects to deliver 7 center wing boxes in 2014.

Program outlook
• The UH-60M program long-term
forecast is the production of 1,360
helicopters by 2026 to be used
by the U.S. Armed Forces (excluding exports).
• Approximately 500 units of UH-60M
have been delivered so far.
• In 2014, Aero plans to deliver up to 50 cockpits.
Aero also supplies cockpits for the international Black Hawk S-70i to Sikorsky PZL Mielec in Poland.
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REPORT ON BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

LAnDInG GEAR PRODUCTIOn

OTHER PROGRAMS

Program description
• Aero is an original manufacturer of landing gear for small aircraft and a supplier of components used in landing gears of large
transport aircraft.
• Since 2010, Aero has been supplying Messier-Bugatti-Dowty sub-assemblies for landing gears of Airbus A320 aircraft family
(A318/319/320), a single-aisle medium-range airplane. The A320 is currently the best-selling aircraft family.
• Aero manufactures landing gear for the Aircraft Industries twin-engine L-410 Turbolet turbo-fan transport aircraft for
19 passengers.
• Aero produces landing gear for all the training and combat aircraft of its own production.

saab Jas-39 gripen
• Fully equipped weapon pylons compliant
with the nATO standard.
• In 2012, Aero continued supplying pylons,
54 units were delivered in total.

Product and role of aero
• Aero supplies landing gear sub-assemblies for the Airbus A320 aircraft to Messier-Bugatti-Dowty, the world's leading manufacturer
of landing gear systems.
• Aero produces complete nose and main landing gear for the L-410 Turbolet.
• Aero is the holder of type certificate for the landing gear of its entire in-house aircraft production, i.e. L-39/59/159 and Ae270.

embraer 170/190
• Deliveries of hinges and internal structures
of all doors for the Embraer
E-170/175/190/195 aircraft.
• Aero's customer is Latecoere.

Program outlook
• Aero expects a gradual increase in production reflecting the continuous increase of production of the A320 aircraft, linked to the
expansion of current scope of work.
• A delivery of 22 ship sets is expected as a part of the L-410 program in 2014.

f/a-18e/f super hornet
• Dual source supplier of gun bay doors for the F/A-18E/F Super Hornet aircraft.
• Deliveries started in 2001. 500th unit was produced in May 2013.

airbus a320
• Since 2005, Aero has been a supplier to Premium Aerotec.
The deliveries include small assemblies of structural parts
for the tail section of the A320 and A330 aircraft,
consisting of more than 250 various sub-assemblies.
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REPORT ON BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

EnGInEERInG DIVISIOn

CURREnT PROGRAMS OF THE EnGInEERInG DIVISIOn

During 2013, the Engineering department became a separate division offering complex integrated portfolio of services in the area
of development of aerospace structures. This step is a continuation of the strategic intention of Aero to become a strong partner
of key aerospace manufacturers not only in the area of production but also in the field of development.

bombardier cseries – international risk-sharing program
Customer: SOnACA
Aero Role: Development and production of a wing fixed leading edge for the transport aircraft.
Status:
Running (Since 2009)

Creation of a separate division will not only allow a long-term development of capabilities and experience in the area of design but
it has already initiated independent commercial activities of the Engineering division in the form of purely engineering development
packages. A focused growth is expected in this area.
tasks of the engineering division include:
• Developing engineering solutions for risk-sharing programs, i.e. development of aircraft structures within the international
development programs, subsequently manufactured by the Aerostructures Division.
• Configuration control: end-to-end with full documentation management.
• Production support services across all Aero projects.
• Independent engineering services for external clients including development of structural work packages, on-site consulting,
certification support, and other.
key capabilities of the engineering division:
• Concept & Detailed design
• Analysis
• Testing
• Certification
• Production support
• Technical publications
• Tool design

embraer kc-390 – international risk-sharing program
Customer: Embraer
Aero Role: Development and production of a wing fixed leading edge for a military transport aircraft. Production of cargo ramps,
rear fuselages and all doors for the military transport aircraft.
Status:
Running (Since 2011)
embraer kc-390 – engineering services
Customer: Embraer
Aero Role: Development of military transport aircraft FTI equipment & installations; Wing to fuselage fairings.
Status:
Running (Since 2013)
aero Programs – engineering services
Customer: Aerostructures Division
Aero Role: Support services across all programs in the form of industrial engineering, production support and configuration
control services.
Status:
Running (Since 2013)
development of composite aileron for the l-39 aircraft
Customer: Defence & MRO Division
Task:
Development of composite aileron for the L-39 aircraft with the objective to extend the service life compared
to the ordinary structure.
Status:
Running, completed in 2013
key references
The Engineering Division fully follows the experience of Aero obtained by development of its own products. Aero is capable
of implementing complex aircraft development projects, including certification.
complete development of military aircraft
L-39 Albatros, L-59 Super Albatros, L-159 A/B, Ae270 Ibis
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REPORT ON BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

DEFEnCE & MRO DIVISIOn

DEFEnCE & MRO DIVISIOn PROGRAMS

In 2012 and 2013, the division focused especially on supporting the L-159 aircraft used by the Armed Forces of the Czech Republic,
as well as performing under the eight years of operation repairs agreement (PP2000). Last five aircraft of the total of 20 saw their
repairs completed in 2013. The L-159 program also included contract to store surplus L-159 aircraft, extended by two years in 2012.
Another post-warranty maintenance agreement (FOSS – Follow On Support and Services) was signed for 4 years – regarding supply
of spare parts and expendable material, repairs, technical support and improvement of maintenance system. Aero also continues
the program aimed at improvement of L-159 aircraft functions – night vision system modifications were successfully tested in 2013
and a new version of software was developed, tested and implemented, significantly increasing operational capabilities of the
aircraft. Work on modifying the wing of the aircraft is currently underway aimed at creating space for fuel tanks in the wing,
significantly increasing the flying range of the aircraft.

support of l-159s serving in the armed forces of the czech republic
• Performance under the agreement to store surplus L-159 aircraft.
• Performance under post warranty maintenance (FOSS) agreement
– regarding supply of spare parts and expendable material, repairs,
technical support and maintenance system improvement.
• Supporting the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic
during the sale of the stored L-159s.

LAST FIVE AIRCRAFT OF THE TOTAL
OF 20 SAW THEIR REPAIRS COMPLETED In 2013.

5

The division further focuses on supporting T-59s in Tunisia consisting of successful overhauls (general repairs) and subsequent
supply of DV-2 engines following the overhauls. A FOSS agreement was signed for 2013 as well as a contract regarding an
overhaul of additional six L-59s including their service-life extension to 30 years signed in January 2013.
The division also actively supports clients using the L-39 aircraft. Contracts were implemented in Algeria (aircraft service-life
extensions and spare parts supply). Furthermore, Aero entered an agreement to overhaul 17 L-39 aircraft in Algeria in February 2013.
2012 also saw the ordering of overhaul of six L-39ZA aircraft in Bulgaria. The first aircraft was overhauled in 2013 and the contract
will move ahead with an overhaul of additional two aircraft in 2014.
To improve training using L-39 aircraft, the division joined with SPEEL Praha in developing a transparent head-up display suitable
for use in the L-39s.
The L-39 aircraft are also used in civil aviation and the division works to implement a maintenance system for L-39s registered
in the civil register. Aero obtained a maintenance authorization for L-39 civil aircraft from the Civil Aviation Authority in 2013.
In the same year, the first repaired aircraft was registered under the “OK” designation.

support of l-59s in tunisia
• Supplying two overhauled engines.
• Performance under post warranty maintenance (FOSS)
agreement for 2013.
• Performance under agreement regarding
overhaul of six L-59s.

support of l-39 customers and aircraft
• Performance under agreement regarding overhaul
of 17 Algerian aircraft.
• Performance under agreement to extend service-life
of L-39s in Slovakia.
• Performance under agreement regarding overhaul
of L-39s in Bulgaria.

Several dozen installations of EFB (Electronic Flight Bag) were implemented within the authorization to perform customer
modifications of civil aircraft. EFB is an electronic information system assisting the crew with flight management, used especially
in A320 and A330 aircraft.

46 |

| 47

...QUALITY

Annual report 2013 AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. | Economic results of the company

FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE COMPANY

The company was undergoing a change of corporate structure in the last two years; therefore a financial period was set starting
on 1st January 2012 and ending on 31st December 2013 in accordance with Section 17a of Act no. 586/1992 Coll., on income taxes,
and Section 3 of Act no. 563/1991 Coll.
In the financial period 2012-2013, Aero generated a net profit of CZK 544.7 million. AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. thus continued
the positive results reached by AERO Vodochody a.s. since the start of restructuring in 2007, when the company was taken-over
by Penta. The balance sheet total was CZK 4,528 million as of 31st December 2013; the equity covered 35.5% of assets amounting
to CZK 1,608 million.

SALES
Total sales generated by the company amounted to CZK 6,743 million in 2012-2013. Of that number, 92.8% represent the sale
for own products and services, 5.0% represent sale of goods and 2.2% represent sale of material and property. Implementation of
new programs, increased price of S-76D helicopters supplied by the Aerostructures division and increase in supplies of UH-60M
and S-70i helicopter cockpits all had positive impact on development of sales.

THE AEROSTRUCTURES DIVISIOn GEnERATED
CZK 5,277 MILLIOn FROM THE SALE OF GOODS,
PRODUCTS AnD SERVICES

5,277

MILLION

The Aerostructures division generated CZK 5,277 million from the sale of goods, products and services. Production for Sikorsky –
a key client of the company till this day – represents a vast share of the division’s sale. For the first time, however, a new production program regarding a wing leading edge for Bombardier’s CSeries aircraft is significantly reflected in the total sales. Increased
supply of S-76 type D helicopter is expected in the following years, as well as further sales diversification thanks to the new
production of KC-390 wing leading edge, door, ramp and rear fuselage and A321 panels.
Defence & MRO division contributed 21% to the total sales of the company. The largest portion of the mentioned sales came from
performed contracts with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic and overhauls ordered by defence ministries of Algeria,
Vietnam and Tunisia.

PROFIT
The net profit of CZK 544.7 million consists of operating profit of CZK 680.4 million, financial operations loss of CZK 137.4 million
and extraordinary profit of CZK 1.7 million.
S-76 and Black Hawk production programs contributed positively to the total profit of Aero, as well as the agreements entered
with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic. Savings achieved by implementing the WInG system also positively impacted
the profit reached.
The profit generated by Aero includes yields and costs of derivate operations, cost and yield interest, exchange rate differences and
other financial costs. In 2012 and 2013 Aero showed a loss from contracted derivatives in the amount of CZK 26.1 million. Cost
interest accounted for CZK 66.2 million; Aero received the interest of CZK 4.4 million from loans to affiliated entities. CZK 0.4 million
was obtained as deposit interest. Exchange rate losses exceeded exchange rate gains by CZK 6.7 million. Other financial costs
(insurance and loan-related fees) lowered the profit for 2012-2013 by CZK 43.2 million.

ASSET STRUCTURE
Company assets amounted to CZK 4,528 million as of 31st December 2013. Fixed assets grew from the initial (1.1.2012) CZK 1,050 million
to CZK 1,577 million, representing an increase of 50%. Fixed assets represented 34.8% of total assets value. The growth of fixed
assets was caused by investments related to introduction of new production programs, especially the CSeries, KC-390 and A321,
as well as by technology development investments and modernization of existing assets.
Current assets amounted to CZK 2,766 million as of 31st December 2013. They represented 61.1 % of the balance sheet total. Their
value reflected especially receivables related to sales taking place before the end of 2013. Temporary accounts of asset accounted
for 4.1 % of the total assets, representing time difference between expenses and income. When compared with 1.1.2012, there was
a significant growth of prepaid expenses by CZK 94.4 million caused by introducing new production programs.

CURREnT ASSETS AMOUnTED
TO CZK 2,766 MILLIOn AS
OF 31ST DECEMBER 2013

2,766

MILLION

During 2012 and 2013, Aero exported goods, products and services in the value of CZK 5,494 million. Foreign sales represent 81.5%
of total sales.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE COMPANY

FInAnCIAL STAnDInG

QUALITy MAnAGEMEnT SySTEM

As of 31st December 2013, 35.5% of company assets were covered by equity. 100% of shares are owned by TULAROSA a.s., a part
of the consolidation unit of Penta Investment Limited group.

From the perspective of management system, 2013 was especially concerned with transferring the existing quality management
system to the newly created AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s, verifying compliance with all statutory and customer requirements
and extending the system according to new customer demands. The entire management system in all its areas was audited by
certificating and regulatory bodies. no serious deficiencies were discovered during audits and inspections. The verification
focused especially on the issues related to the creation of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. Audit information served as a basis
for further development and correcting the corporate management system.

Liabilities reached the sum of CZK 2,848 million as of 31st December 2013, representing 62.9% of equity and liabilities. Main
liabilities of the company have the form of bank loans and current liabilities. 85.5% of the current liabilities amounting to CZK
1,032 million have the form of trade payables and advances received.
By the end of 2013, Aero was drawing bank loans of CZK 1,551 million. The bank loans consist of a revolving loan financing
working capital of S-76D and Black Hawk programs, a loan financing development and implementation of CS100 and CS300 wing
leading edge mass production, another loan earmarked for financing of composite production facility and overdrafts.

InVESTMEnTS, DEVELOPMEnT PROGRAMS, RESEARCH AnD DEVELOPMEnT

In 2013, the portfolio of certified standard requirements was expanded by adding maintenance authorization for L-39 Albatros in
its civil (demilitarized) version, supervised by the Civil Aviation Authority. The portfolio of accredited special processes was extended
to include composites production accreditation under nADCAP AC7118 in January 2013. The implementation of information security
requirements under ISO 27000 continued. The certification originally planned for the second half of 2013 was delayed due to change
of applicable law. The certification will take place in the first half of 2014 instead. Preparations for obtaining an authorization
to design or change aeronautical appliances in accordance with regulation of the European Commission (EC) no. 216/2008
by the Engineering division. The authorization should be obtained during the first half of 2014.

Investment and development activity continued in accordance with long-term strategy of company development.
Significant investments were directed towards development and implementation of manufacture of new products, namely wing
leading edges for CSeries aircraft as well as wing leading edges, ramps and rear fuselages of KC-390 multi-purpose military
transport aircraft.
Total costs channelled towards the development of CSeries wing leading edge are calculated at CZK 489 million. In 2009,
the project was chosen in the TIP research and development support contest and obtained a subsidy of CZK 93 million.
The costs of development of parts for KC-390 multi-purpose military transport aircraft are currently estimated at CZK 1.2 billion.
In 2011, Aero received a TIP program subsidy of CZK 123 million. In relation to KC-390 risk-sharing project, a European grant was
approved within the POTEnTIAL program, earmarked for investment into extension of development facility for advanced aircraft
parts manufacture. The whole grant amounted to CZK 99.5 million. The investments are planed till 2015. Aero invested CZK 423
million in the two abovementioned products in the last two years.
Construction of modern composite production plant was completed in 2012. The project required investments by Aero into
state-of-the-art technologies. The new plant occupying area of 5,400 sq. m. will especially cover the demand of existing clients.
In 2012, a European grant of CZK 25 million was paid in relation to the investment within InnOVATIOn program.
In the last two years, Aero also invested in modernizing and developing its production resources, optimizing production procedures
and human resources. Signing A321 aircraft panels production agreement lead to investing in technology of automated riveting
of aircraft structures, constituting as to its scope one of the most important investment decisions of 2012.

WInG SySTEM AnD MInOR IMPROVEMEnTS PROGRAM
A new post of “Business Excellence director” was created for support and further development of requirements defined within the
WInG system. Diego Tomaz Manreza became the first person to be appointed to the office. Consequently, a team was established
focusing on development and effective use of WInG tools on an everyday basis. A new WInG tool was introduced this year:
a “Kaizen week”. This aimed activity is designed to solve a specified problem employing a multi-functional team. In total 24 areas
were solved using the Kaizen week tool. The WInG system also includes another tool labelled Kaizen – minor improvements. In total
619 improvement suggestions were filed by employees in 2013 (325 were approved and are currently implemented, 172 were
rejected and approval of 122 is pending). Total savings achieved through Kaizen – minor improvements is CZK 7,143,921.

ADDITIOnAL 700 EMPLOyEES
ARE PLAnnED TO BE TRAInED In 2014

700

Throughout 2013, knowledge and practical use of the tools offered by the WInG system was systematically strengthened. This was
mainly achieved by training of Aero’s workforce – 670 employees underwent systematic training. Additional 700 employees are
planned to be trained in 2014. Another WInG tools training took place during the year, focusing on finding root causes and FMEA
methods. Also, trainings regarding solving process bottlenecks and lowering costs by applying the LEAn approach continued. Risk
management tools were updated and consequent trainings took place during the year. WInG system requirements were introduced
and certified by three key suppliers of outsourced activities.
Costs related to nonconforming production decreased by 49% in comparison with 2012. The value of nonconformities reported by
customers decreased by 95%.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE COMPANY

EnVIROnMEnT

STRATEGIC SOURCInG

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. produced in total 10.84 tons of air pollution emissions
(including 6 tons of volatile organic substances, 4.1 ton of nitrogen oxide and 0.6 ton
of solid particles). The largest share of the emissions came from the boiler plant and
paint shops. Measurements of all sources showed that emission limits were met in 2013.
no air pollution fee was imposed for 2013.

Strategic Sourcing is undoubtedly one of the most dynamic departments of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. Less than four years
old, it is one of the youngest departments of the company. Despite that, Strategic Sourcing department managed to establish
itself well within the organizational structure of the company in 2013 and it significantly contributed to implementing all the new
programs of the company and supporting most existing ones. The growing number of employees within the department testifies
as to its increasing importance. Since 2012, the number of employees in the department grew by more than one third and for the
first time exceeded 30 at the end of 2013.

In 2013, Aero produced 1,384.9 ton of waste, including 943 tons of hazardous waste.
The sum of CZK 1,427,828 was spent on waste disposal.
Aero drew 71 thousand m3 of groundwater in 2013 (including 65.5 thousand m3 for
industrial technology) and discharged 71.7 thousand m3 of wastewater. Fees charged
for discharge of wastewater totalled CZK 4,876, including CZK 4,876 for the pollution
and CZK 0 for the volume of wastewater discharged.

HUMAn RESOURCES
Regarding human resources management in 2013, the company focused on workforce growth related activities and new employees’
adaptation including an establishment of a training centre for airframe machining. The company obtained two prestigious awards
– the CZECH PATROn award for the Best Employer from the Czech Chamber of Commerce and Sodexo award for the best employer
in the region.
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. also takes part in active collaboration among aviation industry representatives and educational
institutions aimed at development of education suitable for the aviation industry. Development of education is among the chief
priorities of the Confederation of the Czech Aviation Industry, an organization founded by AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
together with eight other aviation manufacturers in June 2011.
The average number of Aero’s employees in 2013 was 1,516 (1,583 including agency employees) and the total number of employees
as of 31st December 2013 was 1,683 (1,772 including agency employees). More than 399 new employees were hired for qualified
labourer and technical jobs designated for the preparation and implementation of both existing and new production programs.
125 employees left the company. In 2014, the company plans to create 350 additional new jobs.

SInCE 2012, THE nUMBER OF EMPLOyEES
In THE DEPARTMEnT GREW By MORE THAn OnE THIRD
AnD FOR THE FIRST TIME ExCEEDED 30 AT THE EnD OF 2013

30

Production jigs outsourcing was one of the core activities of the department in 2013. Strategic Sourcing department participated
in both newly introduced programs – Embraer KC-390 and Airbus A321 – by supplying a complete set of assembly jigs for both
production lines. In case of the KC-390 production line, all jigs were delivered and installed before the end of 2013 and the KC-390
production line is expected to be completed in the first months of 2014. Apart from assembly jigs, the department participated
in procuring more than two hundred part jigs including jigs for composite parts of the KC-390 program.
The KC-390 and Airbus A321 programs presented the largest volume of work also in the area of purchase of drawing items. In that
respect, Strategic Sourcing department procured parts for basic production in Aero. By working on both projects, the department
demonstrated its ability to take over an existing supplier chain from the current manufacturer, as was the case of A321, and to
create a completely new supplier chain compliant with the requirements if development programs, such as KC-390. Another part
of Aero’s outsourcing worth mentioning is the successful start of importing machined parts of S-76 helicopter from Romania,
which should free key production resources of Aero in the future, lowering production costs at the same time.
Separation of Strategic Sourcing in 2013 demonstrated the ability to cope even with dramatic increase of outsourcing demand
regarding parts cooperation and jigs. In the future, the department will focus on strengthening its position of an alternative
supplier of parts and jigs for Aero programs, allowing for the most effective distribution of work among internal and external
resources of the company, granting Aero access to new production technologies and processes.

Total fluctuation reached 8.2% in 2013, a result 0.1% higher than in 2012. Average wage amounted to CZK 33,370. Total education
expenses were CZK 5,810,126. Costs of development of a single employee amounted to CZK 3,832 in 2013.

54 |

| 55

Annual report 2013 AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. | Important events

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER
THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

INTEGRATED MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM WING

JANUARY

Through implementation and subsequent development of the WInG system, AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. aims to:
for its customers
Create a management standard including convincing guarantees allowing us to maintain the position of a top supplier in the long run.

• Opening a new plant for landing gear production.
• Signing an agreement to produce sandwich panels for the new Global 7000/8000 aircraft produced by Bombardier, Canada.

for its suppliers
Offer a framework to create a responsible and efficiently built partnership.

MARCH

for its employees
Introduce an environment where desirable and undesirable behavior is unambiguously defined and where a transparent and
understandable relation between the excellent performance of an individual and the results of the company exists at the same time.

• Supplying the first rear fuselage for Embraer KC-390 military transport aircraft.

APRIL
• Creation of independent Operations division.

Riveting machine

THE STRUCTURE OF WInG
WInG consists of basic parts – principles, control cornerstones and tools.

MAY

basic pronciples
• Define the principles that control the behavior and the decision-making of Aero employees.

• Installation of new riveting machine.
• Supplying the first fuselage panels for Airbus A321 to Alenia Aermacchi, Italy.
• Signing an agreement with Draken International Inc., USA, regarding the sale of
a part of L-159A tactical jet aircraft of the Armed Forces of the Czech Republic.
first fuselage panels for Airbus A321

EVENTS EXPECTED IN 2014
•
•
•
•
•
•
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Supplying the first set of doors, first wing leading edges and first loading ramp for the Embraer KC-390 military transport aircraft.
Signing an agreement amendment regarding an overhaul of the other half of the 17 L-39s in Algeria.
Signing an agreement amendment regarding an overhaul of two additional L-59s in Tunisia.
Initiating negotiations with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic regarding the PP2000 of L-159T1 aircraft.
Signing an agreement regarding support of L-39s serving in the Armed Forces of the Czech Republic.
Supplying the first Global 7000/8000 sandwich panels to Bombardier.

control corner stones
• Contain the most important approaches supporting the Aero management.
• Methodology of the individual cornerstones is managed by guarantors.
• Trainings related to the development and deepening of cornerstones are provided by champions.
tools
• Describe the innovative procedures for the execution and the support of management activities, which are applied at Aero to
a larger extent.

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE WInG MAnUAL?
WInG manual documents the structure of WInG and introduces basic features of the individual components of the system. It is
designed to be used for basic familiarization with the organization of the system and with its current status. The manual is to be
used by customers, suppliers and employees of the company. WInG manual is interpretative and the Company Quality Manual
is superior to organizational guide lines and instructions.
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CONFEDERATION
OF THE CZECH AVIATION INDUSTRY

Confederation of the Czech Aviation Industry (CCAI), with Aero as one of its founding members, is an association of 19 (as of 31st
December 2013) manufacturers active in the aviation industry, 4 universities and 2 other institutions. Core activities of CCAI
members include production and integration of aerostructures, civil aircraft engines development and production, development,
production and repair of aircraft technology, avionics and systems, production of galleys, aircraft interiors and machined parts.
The companies associated in CCAI were doing well in 2013 with sales of CCAI members growing by almost 29% and the aircraft
production itself growing by not less than 51%. Export of members of the confederation grew by almost 21%. Operating profits and
net income were, however, the greatest success of the last year, growing by 351% and 344% respectively. This equals to CZK
1.8 billion, respectively CZK 1.5 billion. The fivefold profit growth of 2012 is thus followed by another, more than threefold growth.
Total sales grew together with profits, increasing by 29% to CZK 8.7 billion. The number of people employed by the member
companies grew by 1% up to 4,861. Of that number, 3,772 people were working in direct aircraft production, i.e. a little less than
15% more than in 2012. The above numbers also reflect a significant increase in work productivity. Improving relations among the
individual members can be seen as another highly positive contribution of the CCAI. Better cooperation lead to increase in mutual
sales by 24.5%.

THE COMPAnIES ASSOCIATED In CCAI WERE DOInG WELL In 2013
WITH SALES OF CCAI MEMBERS GROWInG By ALMOST 29%
AnD THE AIRCRAFT PRODUCTIOn ITSELF GROWInG By nOT LESS THAn 51%

29

%

LIST OF MEMBERS AS OF 31ST DECEMBER 2013
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
ATG s.r.o.
CHARVÁT AxL, a.s.
Česká letecká servisní a.s.
ČVUT Praha (Fakulta strojní)
Česká zbrojovka a.s.
GE Aviation Czech s.r.o.
Inženýrská akademie ČR
Jihlavan a.s.
LA Composite, s.r.o.
LOM Praha s.p.
Lloyd’s Register Quality Assurance Česká republika
Quittner & Schimek s.r.o.
Ray Service a.s.
SAAB Czech s.r.o.
Skyleader Aircraft (Jihlavan Airplanes s.r.o.)
SPEEL Praha s.r.o.
Startech s.r.o.
TL Elektronic a.s.
VUT v Brně (Fakulta strojního inženýrství)
Vysoká škola obchodní v Praze, o.p.s.
Univerzita obrany (Fakulta vojenských technologií)
Zlín Aircraft a.s.
Znojemské strojírny s.r.o.
Zodiac Galleys Europe s.r.o.

The total fluctuation is calculated as the ratio of the number of leaving employees and average number of all registered active employees in a year.
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STATEMENT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

In compliance with Section 446 of Act no. 90/2012 Coll., on business companies and cooperatives (Business Corporations Act),
the Supervisory Board reviewed the ordinary financial statements of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. for the financial period
from 1. 1. 2012 to 31. 12. 2013.
Having discussed the ordinary financial statements and having examined the accompanying auditor’s opinion, the Supervisory
Board recommended at its meeting on 3rd July 2014 that the financial statements should be approved by the General meeting
of the Company.
Furthermore, the Supervisory Board recommended to the General meeting that the allocation of profit generated in the financial
period from 1. 1. 2012 to 31. 12. 2013 should be approved as proposed by the Board of Directors, namely:
The profit of CZK 544,724,782.68 should be allocated as follows:
- Profit distribution in the amount of CZK 400,000,000
- The remaining sum of CZK 144,724,782.68 to be transferred from account no. 431 “Profit/Loss in Approval Process” to account
no. 428 – Retained earnings from previous years.
In Odolena Voda on 3rdJuly 2014

Zdeněk Sýkora
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

to the shareholder of aero vodochody aerosPace a.s.:
I. I. We have audited the financial statements of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (“the Company”) as at 31 December 2013 and
for the period of 24 months then ended, presented in the annual report of the Company on pages 66 – 94 and our audit report dated
23 April 2014 stated the following:
“We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2013, and the income statement and cash flow statement for the period of 24 months then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. For details of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
see note 1 to the financial statements.
management's responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Act on Auditors and International Standards on Auditing as amended by implementation guidance of the Chamber of
Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE
a.s. as at 31 December 2013, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period of 24 months then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the Czech Republic.
other matter
The prior year financial statements of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (formerly TULAREO a.s.) as at 31 December 2011 and for
the period starting 15 December 2011 and ending 31 December 2011 were audited by other auditor whose report dated 1 november
2012 expressed an unmodified opinion.”
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II. II. We have also audited the consistency of the annual report with the financial statements described above. The management
of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is responsible for the accuracy of the annual report. Our responsibility is to express, based
on our audit, an opinion on the consistency of the annual report with the financial statements as at 31 December 2013 and for the
period of 24 months then ended.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and the related implementation guidance issued
by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the information presented in the annual report that describes the facts reflected in the financial
statements is consistent, in all material respects, with the financial statements. We have checked that the accounting information
presented in the annual report on pages 10 – 57 is consistent with that contained in the audited financial statements as at
31 December 2013 and for the period of 24 months then ended. Our work as auditors was confined to checking the annual report
with the aforementioned scope and did not include a review of any information other than that drawn from the audited accounting
records of the Company. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the accounting information presented in the annual report is consistent, in all material respects, with the financial
statements described above.
III. III. In addition, we have reviewed the accuracy of the information contained in the report on related parties of AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s. as at 31 December 2013 and for the period of 24 months then ended, presented in the annual report of the Company
on pages 95 – 97. As described in report on related parties, the Company prepared this report in accordance with Commercial Code.
The management of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. is responsible for the preparation and accuracy of the report on related
parties. Our responsibility is to issue a report based on our review.
We conducted our review in accordance with the applicable International Standard on Review Engagements and the related Czech
standard no. 56 issued by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the report on related parties is free from material misstatement. The review is
limited primarily to enquiries of company personnel, to analytical procedures applied to financial data and to examining, on a test basis,
the accuracy of information, and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the report on related parties of AERO Vodochody
AEROSPACE a.s. as at 31 December 2013 and for the period of 24 months then ended.

Ernst & young Audit, s.r.o.
License no. 401
Represented by Partner

Radek Pav
Auditor, License no. 2042

3 July 2014
Prague, Czech Republic
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Current year
31 December 2013
Gross
Allowances
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Prior year
31 December 2011
Net
Net

a.

total assets
stock subscrIPtIon receIvable

7,100,394
0

-2,572,884

4,527,510
0

1,974

b.

fIxed assets

3,690,635

-2,113,272

1,577,363

0

b. I.
B. I. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Intangible assets
Foundation and organization expenses
Research and development
Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangible assets in progress
Advances granted for intangible assets

584,531
0
0
214,429
257,267
0
2,000
110,835
0

-261,437
0
0
-204,409
-56,819
0
-209
0
0

323,094
0
0
10,020
200,448
0
1,791
110,835
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

b. II.
B. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

tangible assets
Land
Constructions
Separate movable items and groups of movable items
Perennial crops
Livestock
Other tangible assets
Tangible assets in progress
Advances granted for tangible assets
Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property

3,105,013
16,906
993,674
1,733,694
0
0
9,456
326,348
24,935
0

-1,851,835
0
-512,091
-1,337,519
0
0
-2,225
0
0
0

1,253,178
16,906
481,583
396,175
0
0
7,231
326,348
24,935
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

b. III.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7

financial investments
Subsidiaries
Associates
Other long-term securities and interests
Loans to subsidiaries and associates
Other long-term investments
Long-term investments in progress
Advances granted for long-term investments

1,091
1,091
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,091
1,091
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Current year
31 December 2013
Gross
Allowances

Prior year
31 December 2011
Net
Net

c.

current assets

3,225,442

-459,612

2,765,830

1,974

c. I.
C. I. 1
2
3
4
5
6

Inventory
Materials
Work in progress and semi-finished production
Finished products
Livestock
Goods
Advances granted for inventory

1,964,410
1,225,534
710,351
0
0
3,528
24,997

-440,276
-337,392
-92,678
0
0
-923
-9,283

1,524,134
888,142
617,673
0
0
2,605
15,714

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

c. II.
C. II. 1
2
3

long-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners, co-operative members
and participants in association
Long-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables
Deferred tax asset

77,512
0
77,512
0

0
0
0
0

77,512
0
77,512
0

0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

short-term receivables
Trade receivables
Receivables from group companies with majority control
Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Receivables from partners, co-operative members
and participants in association
Social security and health insurance
Due from government - tax receivables
Short-term advances granted
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables

950,696
922,625
0
0

-19,336
-19,336
0
0

931,360
903,289
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0
8,587
4,561
8,622
6,301

0
0
0
0
0

0
8,587
4,561
8,622
6,301

0
0
0
0
0

c. Iv.
C. IV. 1
2
3
4

short-term financial assets
Cash
Bank accounts
Short-term securities and interests
Short-term financial assets in progress

232,824
5,307
227,517
0
0

0

1,974

0
0
0

232,824
5,307
227,517
0
0

d.

other assets - temPorary accounts of assets

184,317

0

184,317

0

d. I.
D. I. 1
2
3

accrued assets and deferred liabilities
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses)
Unbilled revenue

184,317
64,089
114,217
6,011

0
0
0
0

184,317
64,089
114,217
6,011

0
0
0
0

4
5
6
7
8
c. III.
C. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

1,974
0
0

| 67

Annual report 2013 AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. | Financial statement

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

68 |

Current year
31 December 2013

Prior year
31 December 2011

a.

total eQuIty & lIabIlItIes
eQuIty

4,527,510
1,607,979

1,974
1,945

a. I.
A. I. 1
2
3

basic capital
Registered capital
Own shares and own ownership interests (-)
Changes in basic capital

1,002,000
1,002,000
0
0

2,000
2,000
0
0

a. II.
A II. 1
2
3
4
5
6

capital funds
Share premium (agio)
Other capital funds
Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities
Gain or loss on revaluation of company transformations
Gain or loss on company transformations
Gain or loss on revaluation upon company transformations

-9,988
0
0
-11,419
0
1,431
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

a III.
A III. 1
2

reserve funds and other funds created from profit
Legal reserve fund
Statutory and other funds

3,660
0
3,660

0
0
0

a. Iv.
IV. 1
2
3

Profit (loss) for the previous years
Retained earnings for the previous years
Accumulated loss of previous years
Other retained earnings for previous years

67,582
67,637
-55
0

0
0
0
0

a. v.

Profit (loss) for the year (+ / -)

544,725

-55

Current year
31 December 2013

Prior year
31 December 2011

2,847,578

29

253,269
0
0
0
253,269

0
0
0
0
0

b.

lIabIlItIes

b. I.
B. I. 1
2
3
4

Provisions
Provisions created under special legislation
Provision for pensions and similar obligations
Provision for corporate income tax
Other provisions

b. II.
B. II. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

long-term liabilities
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Long-term advances received
Bonds payable
Long-term notes payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities
Deferred tax liability

12,049
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
12,049
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

b. III.
B. III. 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

current liabilities
Trade payables
Liabilities to group companies with majority control
Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50%
Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association
Liabilities to employees
Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance
Due to government – taxes and subsidies
Short-term advances received
Bonds payable
Unbilled deliveries
Other liabilities

1,031,522
596,321
0
0
0
40,345
23,250
8,156
285,775
0
57,578
20,097

29
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
29
0

b. Iv.
B. IV. 1
2
3

bank loans and borrowings
Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Borrowings

1,550,738
1,496,181
54,557
0

0
0
0
0

c.

other lIabIlItIes - temPorary accounts of lIabIlItIes

71,953

0

c. I.
C. I. 1
2

accrued liabilities and deferred assets
Accruals
Deferred income

71,953
1,637
70,316

0
0
0
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Current year
31 December 2013
A.

b.
B.
B.

I. 1
2

Revenue from sale of goods
Cost of goods sold

+

gross margin

II.
II. 1
2
3
1
2
+

c.
C.
C.
C.
C.

1
2
3
4

D.
E.

1
1

f.
F.
F.
G.

III.
III. 1
2

1
2
1
IV. 2
H.
1
V. 2
I.
1

Prior year
31 December 2011

336,956
250,602
86,354

0

J.

Production
Revenue from sale of finished products and services
Change in inventory produced internally
Own work capitalized
Production related consumption
Consumption of material and energy
Services

6,486,304
6,255,533
-1,574
232,345
4,174,110
3,004,111
1,169,999

0
0
0
0
54

K.

value added

2,398,548

-54

Personnel expenses
Wages and salaries
Bonuses to members of company or cooperation bodies
Social security and health insurance
Other social costs

1,587,036
1,171,175
312
384,319
31,230

0
0
0
0
0

Taxes and charges
9,706
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible fixed assets
194,359
revenue from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials
150,535
Revenues from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets
58,181
Revenue from sale of materials
92,354
net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials sold
727,741
net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets sold
66,492
Materials sold
661,249
Change in provisions and allowances relating to operations and in prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) -619,283
Other operating revenues
2,101,284
Other operating expenses
2,070,390
Transfer of operating revenues
0
Transfer of operating expenses
0

1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

54

L.
M.
n.
O.
P.

Profit or loss on operating activities

680,418

-55

VI. 1
1
vII.
VII. 1
2
3
VIII.1
2
Ix. 1
2
1
x. 1
2
xI. 1
2
xII. 1
2

Revenue from sale of securities and interests
Securities and interests sold
Income from financial investments
Income from subsidiaries and associates
Income from other long-term securities and interests
Income from other financial investments
Income from short-term financial assets
Expenses related to financial assets
Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives
Change in provisions and allowances relating to financial activities
Interest income
Interest expense
Other finance income
Other finance cost
Transfer of finance income
Transfer of finance cost

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
4,853
66,234
602,385
678,407
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

*

Profit or loss on financial activities

-137,403

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

543,015

-55

1
2

tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities
- due
- deferred

**

Profit or loss on ordinary activities after taxation

xIII.1
2
1
1
2

Extraordinary gains
Extraordinary losses
tax on extraordinary profit or loss
- due
- deferred

5,754
4,044
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

*

extraordinary profit or loss

1,710

0

0

0

1

70 |

Prior year
31 December 2011

*

Q.
Q.
Q.

R.
s.
S.
S.

Current year
31 December 2013

Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-)

***

Profit or loss for the year (+/-)

544,725

-55

****

Profit or loss before taxation

544,725

-55
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Current year
31 December 2013

Prior year
31 December 2011

cash flows from operating activities
Profit or loss on ordinary activities before taxation (+/-)

z.
a.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

a *
a.
A.
A.
A.
A.
A.
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2.
2.
2.
2.
2.
2.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Prior year
31 December 2011

Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Loans granted
Interest received
Dividends received

-921,214
58,181
-46,503
-2,551

0
0
0
0
0

net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

-912,087

0

cash flows from investing activities
543,015

-55

adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables
Change in allowances
Change in provisions
Foreign exchange differences
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Interest expense and interest income
Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, dividends received)

1,313,932
284,212
864,404
76,416
-7,004
8,311
61,381
26,212

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

net cash from operating activities before taxation,
changes in working capital and extraordinary items

1,856,947

-55

-1,947,204
-1,984,747
-380,140
-84,125
226,682
275,126

29
0
0
0
0
29

change in non-cash components of working capital
Change in inventory
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, short-term loans and in accruals and deferred income

Current year
31 December 2013

a **

net cash from operating activities before taxation, interest paid and extraordinary items

-90,257

-26

A. 3. 1.
A. 4. 1.
A. 5. 1.

Interest paid
Tax paid
Gains and losses on extraordinary items

-66,234
0
1,710

0
0
0

a ***

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

-154,781

-26

B.
B.
B.
B.
B.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

1.
1.
1.
1.
1.

b ***

cash flows from financing activities
C.
C.
C.
C.

1.
2. 1.
2. 2.
2. 3.

Change in long-term liabilities and long-term, resp. short-tem, loans
Effect of changes in basic capital on cash
Dividends or profit sharing paid
Effect of other changes in basic capital on cash

57,986
1,000,000
0
239,732

0
2,000
0
0

c

***

net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

1,297,718

2,000

230,850
1,974
232,824

1,974
0
1,974

f.
P.
r.

net increase (decrease) in cash
cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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1. DESCRIPTIOn OF THE COMPAny
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. (“the Company”) is a joint stock company incorporated on 15 December 2011 under the name of TULAREO a.s.
in the Czech Republic. The Company’s registered office is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 250 70, Czech Republic and the business
registration number (IČ) is 24194204. The Company is involved in cooperation in producing helicopters and aircraft parts, foreign trade of military
products, development, production, repairs and modernization of military training and combat jets, and other aircraft related work.
from 1 January 2012 to 31 december 2013, the following changes were made to the commercial register entry:
• On 19 September 2012, a change in the name from TULAREO a.s. to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. was entered in the Commercial Register.
• On 19 September 2012, Ing. Ladislav Šimek, MBA, was entered in the Commercial Register as the Board of Directors Chair; the membership
commencement date was 1 September 2012. On 19 September 2012, Ing. Ladislav Šimek, MBA, was deleted from the Commercial Register
as the Supervisory Board member; the membership termination date was 31 August 2012.
• On 19 September 2012, Mgr. Ondřej Benáček, was entered in the Commercial Register as the Board of Directors member; the membership
commencement date was 1 September 2012.
• On 22 May 2013, Ing. Jan Štechr was deleted from the Commercial Register as the Supervisory Board member; the membership termination
date was 15 February 2013.
• On 22 May 2013, Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora was entered in the Commercial Register as the Supervisory Board member; the membership commencement
date was 16 March 2013. Subsequently, Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora was appointed the Supervisory Board Chair as at 4 June 2013. The change was made
to the Commercial Register entry 24 July 2013.
• On 24 July 2013, Jan Borýsek was entered in the Commercial Register as the Supervisory Board member; the membership commencement date
was 22 May 2013.
• On 29 May 2013, a basic capital increase by CZK 1,000,000 thousand was entered in the Commercial Register (see note 10).
• On 26 november 2012, AERO Vodochody a.s., business identification number (IČ): 00010545, with its registered office in Odolena Voda-Dolínek,
U Letiště 374, Zip code 250 70, Czech Republic filed a project of Company’s division in the form of spin-off by merger (“Spin-off project”) in the
Collection of Documents at the Commercial Register. In accordance with the Spin-off project, the assets spun-off from AERO Vodochody a.s. were
transferred to the successor company, AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. The decisive date of the transformation was 1 January 2012. As the transformation of the Company was entered in the Commercial Register as at 1 May 2013, the Company proceeded in accordance with Section 17a)
of the Act no. 586/1992 Coll. on Income Taxes, and in accordance with Section 3 of Act no. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting, stipulating that the
accounting (as well as tax) period of the Company shall be the 24-month period beginning as at the decisive date, i.e. 1 January 2012, and ending
on the last day of the calendar year in which the entry of the transformation in the Commercial Register takes place, i.e. 31 December 2013.
shareholders holding a 10% or greater interest in the company’s basic capital are as follows:
TULAROSA a.s.
100.00%
The parent company and the sole shareholder of the Company is TULAROSA a.s. with its registered office located at na Příkopě 583/15, Prague 1, Czech
Republic. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared as separate financial statements. Consolidated financial statements are
prepared by TULAROSA a.s.’s parent company, OAKFIELD a.s.
The Company is included in its consolidated group. In accordance with the valid Czech accounting legislation, AERO Vodochody a.s. is exempt from
the obligation to prepare consolidated financial statements.

members of the statutory bodies as at 31 december 2013 were as follows:
board of directors
supervisory board
Chair:
Ing. Ladislav Šimek, MBA
Chair:
Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora
Member: Ing. Jan Kříž
Member: Ing. Petr Brychta
Member: Jan Borýsek
Member: Mgr. Ondřej Benáček

2. BASIS OF PRESEnTATIOn OF THE FInAnCIAL STATEMEnTS
The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Czech Act on Accounting and the related guidelines as applicable
for the decisive period (i.e. 24 months from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013) and the preceding period (16 days from the incorporation date,
i.e. 15 December 2011 to 31 December 2011).
Due to the Company’s division in the form of spin-off by merger (see note 1), the accompanying financial statements have been prepared for
the 24-month period, i.e. from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013 (“2013 accounting period”). The previous financial statements have been
prepared for the 16-day period from the date of incorporation, i.e. 15 December 2011 to 31 December 2011 (“2011 accounting period”). Therefore,
the information in the income statement and the statement of cash flows for the current period cannot be directly compared with the information
in the income statement for the previous period.

3. SUMMARy OF SIGnIFICAnT ACCOUnTInG POLICIES
The accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing the 2013 and 2011 financial statements are as follows:
a) Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition cost and related expenses.
Intangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 60 thousand are amortized over their useful economic lives. Small intangible fixed assets (with a cost
of less than CZK 60 thousand) are expensed upon acquisition and carried only in a subsidiary ledger.
Internally-developed intangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated cost, which consist of direct material, labor costs and production
overheads.
amortization
Amortization is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights

years
3
per contract

An allowance is created against intangible fixed assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their carrying amount.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared as separate financial statements.
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b) tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 40 thousand are recorded at their acquisition cost, which consists of purchase price, freight,
customs duties and other related costs.

e) receivables
Both long- and short-term receivables are carried at their realizable value after allowance for doubtful accounts. Additions to the allowance account
are charged to income.

Internally-developed tangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated cost, which consist of direct material, labor costs and production overheads.

f) derivatives
Derivatives are initially measured at cost. Derivatives are recorded in other current liabilities in the accompanying balance sheet.
Derivatives are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging derivatives.

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge are valued at their replacement cost and are recorded with a corresponding credit to the ‘Other capital funds account’ on the date of acquisition. The replacement cost of these assets is set on the basis of the cost known at the moment of the respective asset acquisition.
The costs of technical improvements are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance expenses are expensed as incurred.
depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful life of the related asset. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangible fixed assets

years
30 - 45
10 - 30
8 - 20
4 - 15
5 - 20

Derivatives are revalued to fair value as at the balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are reported in income.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are also recognized in income, together with the change in the fair value of
the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged. Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are taken to equity
and reflected in the balance sheet through gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is reported in income.

An allowance is created against tangible fixed assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their carrying amount.

g) equity
The basic capital of the Company is stated at the amount recorded in the Commercial Register maintained in the Municipal Court in Prague. Any
increase or decrease in the basic capital made pursuant to the decision of the General Meeting which was not entered in the Commercial Register
as at the financial statements date is recorded through changes in basic capital. Contributions in excess of basic capital are recorded as share
premium. Other capital funds are created pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

c) financial assets
Short-term financial assets consist of liquid valuables, cash in hand and at bank. Long-term financial assets consist in particular of ownership
interests and shareholdings.

The Company creates a legal reserve fund from profit. In the first year in which profit is generated, a joint-stock company should allocate 20%
of profit after tax (however, not more than 10% of basic capital) to the legal reserve fund. In subsequent years, the legal reserve fund is allocated
5% of profit after tax until the fund reaches 20% of basic capital. These funds can only be used to offset losses.

Interests and securities are valued at their acquisition cost, which includes the purchase price and direct costs related to the acquisition, e.g. fees
and commissions paid to agents and stock exchanges.

h) Provisions and liabilities
Long-term liabilities and current liabilities are carried at their nominal values. Amounts resulting from the revaluation of financial derivatives at fair
value are shown in other payables.

As at 31 December, ownership interests constituting dominant or significant influence are valued at acquisition cost. If there is a decrease in the carrying
value of long-term financial assets that are not revalued at the balance sheet date, the difference is considered a temporary diminution in value
and is recorded as an allowance.
d) Inventory
Purchased inventory is stated at actual cost being determined using the weighted average method. Costs of purchased inventory include
acquisition-related costs (freight, customs, commission, etc).
Work-in-progress and semi-finished products are recorded at standard cost, which approximates actual. The cost of inventory produced internally
includes direct material and labor costs and production overhead costs. Production overhead costs include energy, repairs and maintenance,
telecommunication and IT costs, depreciation and other production services and materials and are allocated based on direct labor hours.
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The latter are designated as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the change in the fair value
of a derivative or of its estimated cash flow must offset, in whole or in part, the change in the fair value or cash flow arising from the hedged item.
In addition, there must be formal documentation of the hedging relationship at inception and the Company must prove that the hedging relationship
is highly effective. In all other cases, derivatives are recognized as held-for-trading.

Short-term and long-term loans are recorded at their nominal values. Any portion of long-term debt which is due within one year of the balance sheet
date is classified as short-term debt.
Contingent liabilities that are not recorded in the balance sheet because significant uncertainties exist with respect to the amount, title or timing
of the expected outflow of benefits are described in note 18.
i) leases
The Company records leased assets by expensing the lease payments and capitalizing the residual value of the leased assets when the lease contract
expires and the purchase option is exercised. Lease payments paid in advance are recorded as prepaid expenses and amortized over the lease term.
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j) foreign currency transactions
Assets and liabilities whose acquisition or production costs were denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Czech crowns at the exchange
rate prevailing as at the transaction date. On the balance sheet date monetary items are adjusted to the exchange rates as published by the Czech
national Bank as at 31 December.

o) use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company
management prepared these estimates and predictions based on all available relevant information. These estimates and assumptions are based
on information available as at the date of the financial statements and may differ from actual results.

Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses were charged or credited, as appropriate, to income for the year.
k) recognition of revenues and expenses
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they are recognized in the periods in which the actual flow of the related goods
or services occurs, regardless of when the related monetary flow arises.
The Company recognizes as an expense any additions to provisions or allowances against risks, losses or physical damage that are known as at the
financial statements’ date.
Long-term contracts are accounted for according to the completed contract method (or as specified in the contract).
l) Income tax
The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory tax rate and book income before taxes, increased or decreased by
the appropriate permanent and temporary differences (e.g. non-deductible provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, differences
between book and tax depreciation, etc.).

p) subsequent events
The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements preparation is recognized in the financial
statements provided these events provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet.
If material events reflecting the facts occurring after the balance sheet date happened between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements
preparation the consequences of these events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements but not recognized in the financial statements.

4. FIxED ASSETS
a) Intangible fixed assets (in czk thousands)
cost

The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for corporate income tax purposes, taking into consideration the period of realization.
m) subsidies
The subsidies to cover costs are recorded in other operating income upon receipt of the subsidy, observing the matching and accrual principles
applied to accounting for related costs. The subsidies for the acquisition of intangible and tangible fixed assets and technical improvements, along
with subsidies to cover interest included in the acquisition cost, either reduce the related acquisition cost or own work capitalized. Received
subsidies are recorded in separate accounts. This treatment enables the Company to closely monitor subsidies’ receipt and utilization.

Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Other intangibles
Intangibles in progress
Total 2013 accounting period
Total 2011 accounting period

Opening
balance as at
31/ 12/ 2011
-

Effect
of division

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

196,156
75,857
2,032
157,487
431,532
-

2,138
167,574
169,712
-

(14,543)
(2,170)
(16,713)
-

18,273
195,953
(214,226)
-

Opening
balance as at
31/ 12/ 2011
-

Effect
of division

Amortization
during year

At end
of year

(192,785)
(51,762)
(23)
(244,570)
-

(11,624)
(5,057)
(186)
(16,867)
-

(204,409)
(56,819)
(209)
(261,437)
-

Closing
balance as at
31/ 12/ 2013
214,429
257,267
2,000
110,835
584,531
-

In the 2013 and 2011 accounting period, the Company received subsidies from the government of CZK 143,787 thousand and CZK 0 thousand,
respectively which were accounted for as other operating revenues.
accumulated amortIzatIon
In the 2013 accounting period, the Company received subsidies for fixed assets totaling CZK 30,782 thousand.
n) emission allowances
Carbon emission allowances are recorded as intangible fixed assets, which are not depreciated and are valued at cost or replacement cost when
acquired free-of-charge.
The “use of emission allowances” is recorded as at the financial statements’ date based upon the volume of accounting unit’s emissions
in the calendar year. The first free-of-charge acquisition is recorded as other liabilities, which are recognized into income at the time and in the
amount corresponding to the usage of allowances.
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Software
Patents, royalties and similar rights
Other intangibles
Intangibles in progress
Total 2013 accounting period
Total 2011 accounting period

net book
value as at
31/ 12/ 2013
10,020
200,448
1,791
110,835
323,094
-
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Patents, royalties and similar rights as at 31 December 2013 include, in particular, assets purchased or internally developed within the development
of a part of the wing for the C-Series aircraft for the Canadian producer Bombardier.
Intangibles in progress as at 31 December 2013 include, in particular, assets internally developed within the development for the aircraft for the Brazilian
producer Embraer. As at 31 December 2013, the total value of small intangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance
sheet, was CZK 5,683 thousand at acquisition cost.
Intangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 240,271 thousand are fully amortized as at 31 December 2013.
Other intangible fixed assets represent carbon emission allowances (“allowances”). The Company was issued free of charge allowances constituting
the right to emit 10,574 tones of gas emissions in the 2013 accounting period. These emission allowances were valued at their replacement cost
totaling CZK 2,138 thousand.
see below for the movements in the emission allowance account during the 2013 accounting period. In connection with the movements of the
allowance account, the following amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in czk thousands):

Opening balance as at 1/ 1/ 2012 (effect of division)
Free of charge allocation of allowances
Emission allowances required to cover the level of carbon dioxide
emissions determined in the 2013 accounting period
Total as at 31 December 2013

Value of
emission
allowances
1,567
2,138

Other
operating
revenues
-

Other
operating
expenses
-

Other
liabilities

(2,170)

2,170

(2,170)

2,170

1,535

2,170

(2,170)

(1,535)

(1,567)
(2,138)

accumulated dePrecIatIon

Land
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
Total 2013 accounting period
Total 2011 accounting period

Opening
balance as at
31/ 12/ 2011
-

Effect Depreciation Cost of sales
of division during year or liquidation
(462,212)
(1,054,623)
(61,771)
(3,795)
(482)
(1,582,883)
-

(49,879)
(99,399)
(25,258)
(1,213)
(1,743)
(177,492)
-

(9,109)
(760)
(56,623)
(66,492)
-

Disposals

57,652
5,272
56,623
119,547
-

Closing Allowances
balance as at
31/ 12/ 2013
(512,091)
(1,105,479)
(82,517)
(144,515)
(5,008)
(2,225)
(1,707,320)
(144,515)
-

net book
value
16,906
481,583
385,030
7,618
3,527
7,231
326,348
24,935
1,253,178
-

As at 31 December 2013, tangibles in progress include in particular production tools for the Alenia and Embraer projects.
The total value of small tangible fixed assets, which are not reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, including small tangible fixed assets
located at delivery stations, was CZK 618,989 thousand at acquisition cost as at 31 December 2013.
Tangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 756,329 thousand are fully depreciated as at 31 December 2013.
The Company has adjusted the carrying value of certain tangible assets for a diminution in value through an allowance charged against income (see
note 7). As at 31 December 2013, the allowance was CZK 144,515 thousand.

In the 2013 accounting period, the Company recorded no carbon emission allowances.
As at 31 December 2013, a part of non-production buildings with a cost of CZK 14,250 thousand and a net book value of CZK 7,020 thousand were
located outside the Company’s production plant (accommodation facilities).
b) tangible fixed assets (in czk thousands)
cost

Land
Constructions
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Other tangibles
Tangibles in progress
Advances for tangibles
Total 2013 accounting period
Total 2011 accounting period
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Opening
balance as at
31/ 12/ 2011
-

Effect
of division

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

16,890
864,028
1,320,236
238,583
4,034
3,866
140,367
23,279
2,611,283
-

16
611,605
48,514
660,135
-

(57,652)
(5,272)
(56,623)
(46,858)
(166,405)
-

129,646
227,925
1,339
4,501
5,590
(369,001)
-

Closing
balance as at
31/ 12/ 2013
16,906
993,674
1,490,509
234,650
8,535
9,456
326,348
24,935
3,105,013
-

On 8 December 2005, AERO Vodochody a.s. signed a general agreement for post-warranty support of L-159 and L-39 aircraft (see note 18) with the
Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic pursuant to which the Company committed itself to hold with limited disposal rights a significant portion
of fixed assets (particularly land, production halls and other assets necessary for maintaining the ability to provide service repairs for the Army
of the Czech Republic). These assets were spun off to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. within the company’s transformation as at the decisive
date. The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 497,090 thousand and their net book value was CZK 240,914 thousand as
at 31 December 2013. This commitment has not been entered in the Cadastral Register.
On 23 September 2010, AERO Vodochody a.s. and Česká spořitelna, a.s., Komerční banka, a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s. entered into
a contract for the establishment of the right of pledge securing the Company’s immovable assets (buildings and land) with respect to the provided
pre-export loan (see note 13). These assets were spun off to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. within the company’s transformation as at the
decisive date. As at 31 December 2013, the acquisition cost of assets pledged amounted to CZK 828,513 thousand and the net book value amounted
to CZK 454,320 thousand. The acquisition cost of land was CZK 13,679 thousand, the acquisition cost of buildings and constructions was CZK 770,621
thousand whereas their net book value amounted to CZK 399,519 thousand; the acquisition cost of machinery and equipment was CZK 44,213 thousand
and its net book value amounted to CZK 41,122 thousand.
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6. RECEIVABLES

c) long-term financial Investments (in czk thousands)
summary of changes in long-term financial investments:
Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2011
Subsidiaries
-

Effect
of division
1,032

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

-

-

59

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2013
1,091

subsidiaries as at 31 december 2013 were as follows (in czk thousands):
name
Clester Trading a.s.
Registered office
Slovak Republic
Percentage of ownership
100
Total net assets
194
Equity
(5,487)
Basic capital and capital funds
(3,669)
Funds created from profit
91
Accumulated loss
(1,374)
Loss for the current year
(535)
Acquisition cost of share/interest
1,091
nominal value of share/interest
910
Intrinsic value of share/interest
-

7. ALLOWAnCES
Allowances reflect a temporary diminution in the value of assets (see notes 4, 5 and 6).
changes in the allowance accounts (in czk thousands):

Loans to subsidiary (see note 21).

5. InVEnTORy
Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventory has been written down to its estimated net realizable value by an allowance account. The allowance is
determined by management based on an inventory aging analysis and the analysis of its future usability (see note 7).
Materials
35,438
40,076
33,553
196,788
9,830
11,347
10,360
337,392

In the 2013 accounting period, the Company ceded receivables of CZK 1,920,313 thousand. Revenues from the sale of receivables amounted to CZK
1,913,223 thousand in the 2013 accounting period. nominal values of these receivables along with the income from the sale of the receivables were
included in other operating expenses or other operating revenues, as appropriate, in the income statement.
As at 31 December 2013, unbilled revenue represents, in particular, accrued interest on the loans to related parties (see note 21).
As at 31 December 2013, receivables from Sonaca and Sikorsky totaling CZK 571 891 thousand were pledged to secure provided loans (see note 13).
Long- and short-term receivables from related parties (see note 21).

Financial information about Clester Trading a.s. was obtained from the company’s standalone unaudited financial statements as at 31 December 2013.
As at 31 December 2011, the Company had no associates.

Allowances as at 31/ 12/ 2013
(in CZK thousands):
Ae270
L-39
L-59
L-159
Sikorsky Program
not-assigned materials
Other inventory
Total

Allowances against outstanding receivables that are considered doubtful were charged to income based on their analysis (see note 7).
As at 31 December 2013, receivables overdue for more than 180 days totaled CZK 42,280 thousand.

Work-in-progress,
semi-finished products and goods
20,961
20,904
2,964
43,910
919
168
3,775
93,601

Advances granted
for inventory
5,236
3,154
363
183
347
9,283

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2011
-

Allowances against:
Tangible fixed assets
Inventory
Advances granted for inventory
Receivables – legal
Receivables – other
Total

Effect
of division
165,445
1,045,042
8,917
348
12,154
1,231,906

Additions

Deductions

304
173,504
2,492
9,574
185,874

(21,234)
(787,553)
(2,126)
(6)
(2,734)
(813,653)

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2013
144,515
430,993
9,283
342
18,994
604,127

Release of allowances against inventories has been related to their disposal and sale (see note 21).

8. SHORT-TERM FInAnCIAL ASSETS
as at 31 december 2013, the company had the following restricted cash balances (in czk thousands):

Bank
ČSOB, a.s.
Komerční banka, a.s.
Total

Currency
EUR
EUR

Amount in foreign
currency (in thousands)
971
656
-

2013 accounting period
Amount
in CZK thousands
26,636
17,992
44,628

As at 31 December 2013, inventories up to CZK 1,010,801 thousand were pledged in favor of Česká spořitelna, a.s. to secure provided loans (see note 13).
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Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts represent a security for guarantees granted by the banks (see note 13). As at 31 December 2011,
the Company had no accounts with restricted cash balances.
As at 31 December 2013, balances on current accounts maintained with ČEB, a.s., KB, a.s., ČSOB, a.s. and ČS, a.s., totaling CZK 42,554 thousand
were pledged to secure provided loans (see note 13).

Balance as at
15/ 12/ 2011
10
2,000

Decrease Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2011
10
2,000

Effect
of division
-

Increase
5,000
1,000,000

Decrease Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2013
5,010
- 1,002,000

On 9 August 2012, AERO Vodochody a.s. concluded an agreement on the overdraft facility of CZK 50,000 thousand with Česká spořitelna, a.s. (see
note 13). The agreement has been transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. within the Spin-off project. The overdraft was used on an
ongoing basis during the 2013 accounting period; its balance was CZK 40,982 thousand as at 31 December 2013.

number of shares
Basic capital
Differences arising from revaluation
of assets and liabilities
Other funds
Retained earnings
Accumulated loss
Differences arising from company transformations
Profit/loss for the period

On 20 December 2013, the Company concluded an agreement on the overdraft facility of CZK 50,000 thousand with Československá obchodní banka,
a.s. The overdraft was not used in the 2013 accounting period.

In the 2013 accounting period, gain or loss on revaluation arose due to the revaluation of derivative transactions (see note 15) and the revaluation
of interest in the subsidiary Clester Trading a.s. (see note 4c).

For deposits placed at related parties see note 21.

In the 2013 accounting period, the Annual General Meeting approved the above loss compensation of CZK 55 thousand for the 2011 accounting period.

9. OTHER ASSETS

11. PROVISIOnS

As at 31 December 2013, prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid insurance fees, interest expenses and overhead costs, which are charged
to income for the year in which they were incurred.

the movements in the provision accounts were as follows (in czk thousands):
Balance as at
Provisions
31/ 12/ 2011
Contractual charges and penalties
Guarantee repairs L-159 and L-159T1
Overhauls of Tunis and Algiers
Provision for L-39 flying hours
Staff bonuses
Accrued vacation
Guarantee repairs Sikorsky
Contractual charges and penalties Latecoere
Guarantee repairs CASA
Sonaca S.A. provision
Guarantee repairs Alenia
Business transaction Black Hawk
Business transaction VDOT
PP penalties
GBD Boeing provision
Total
-

On 23 September 2009, Aero Vodochody a.s. concluded an agreement on the overdraft facility of CZK 120,000 thousand with Komerční banka, a.s.
(see note 13). The agreement has been transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. within the Spin-off project. The overdraft was used on an
ongoing basis during the 2013 accounting period; its balance was CZK 1,575 thousand as at 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, specific-purpose prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid expenses related to preparation and implementation
of production within the Sonaca program for Bombardier and a project for the Brazilian company Embraer.

10. EQUITy
On 2 May 2013, TULAROSA a.s. as the sole shareholder of the Company decided on a basic capital increase by CZK 1,000,000 thousand. The basic
capital increase was carried out through subscription of 5,000 ordinary registered shares in materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 200
thousand per share. As at 31 December 2013, the basic capital of the Company consists of 5,010 ordinary registered shares in materialized form,
with a nominal value of CZK 200 thousand and is fully paid.
Capital funds consist of gain or loss on revaluation of assets.
Other funds from profit represent a social fund.
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the movements in the capital accounts during the 2013 and 2011 accounting periods were as follows (in czk thousands):

-

-

-

(33,921)

49,742

(27,240)

(11,419)

-

(55)

(55)

4,272
67,637
-

1,431
544,725

(612)
(55)
55

3,660
67,637
(55)
1,431
544,725

Effect
of division
3,321
5,950
902
43,450
16,552
70,001
2,893
982
780
1,415
7,105
7,193
160,544

Additions

Deductions

4,594
4,845
433
96,932
91,036
115,418
16,589
31
17,478
250
347,606

(3,321)
(10,544)
(62,230)
(93,890)
(55,836)
(2,893)
(982)
(372)
(10,515)
(7,105)
(7,193)
(254,881)

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2013
5,747
433
78,152
13,698
129,583
16,589
439
8,378
250
253,269
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12. CURREnT AnD LOnG-TERM LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013 and 2011, the Company had overdue current payables totaling CZK 136,799 thousand and CZK 0 thousand, respectively.
Unbilled deliveries include, in particular, supplies of material and services, which are charged to income for the year in which they were incurred.
Advance payments received as at 31 December 2013 include in particular advance payments from a Bulgarian customer for aircraft overhauls as
well as advance payments from the Brazilian company Embraer for the production of aerospace components.
As at 31 December 2013, the Company had liabilities of CZK 23,250 thousand within due date owing to social security and health insurance premiums.
As at 19 november 2012, the Company and SG EQUIPMEnT FInAnCE Czech Republic s.r.o. concluded an agreement on the provision of loan with a fixed
interest rate of 1.025% and a maturity date of 15 October 2017. The loan amounted to CZK 17,031 thousand as at 31 December 2013. A long-term portion
of the loan totaling CZK 12,049 thousand has been presented in Other long term liabilities; a short-term portion of the loan has been presented in Other
current payables. As at 31 December 2013, other current payables comprise inter alia negative fair values of outstanding derivatives (see note 15).
Payables to related parties (see note 21).

13. BAnK LOAnS
On 23 July 2010, the Company was provided a revolving loan by Česká spořitelna, a.s., Komerční banka, a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s., for financing
of the Sikorsky program. The agreement has been transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. within the Spin-off project. The limit of the
agreed revolving loan was USD 60,000 thousand (CZK 1,193,640 thousand) and the credit limit for purchase of receivables was USD 42,000 thousand
(CZK 835,548 thousand). At any time the sum of these two loans was required not to exceed a limit of USD 92,000 thousand (CZK 1,830,248 thousand).
On 20 December 2013, the drawn down element of USD 56,340 thousand (CZK 1,120,828 thousand) was paid using a new loan provided by Komerční
banka, a.s., Československá obchodní banka, a.s., Citibank Europe plc, organizational unit and Česká spořitelna, a.s. The new revolving loan facility
with a limit of USD 80,000 thousand (CZK 1,591,520 thousand) for the purpose of financing the Sikorsky and Black Hawk programs was concluded
on 16 December 2013. The loan matures on 16 December 2016 and bears interest of 1M PRIBOR + margin. As at 31 December 2013, the drawn down
element of the overdraft was USD 56,340 thousand (CZK 1,120,835 thousand).
On 23 September 2010, AERO Vodochody a.s. concluded a loan agreement with Česká spořitelna, a.s. and Komerční banka, a.s. for CZK 350,000 thousand.
These funds are restricted for financing of a liability arising from a contract for work done (PP-2000 project) effected with the Ministry of Defence of
the Czech Republic. The agreement has been transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. within the Spin-off project. The loan was fully paid
on 30 April 2013.
On 23 September 2010, AERO Vodochody a.s. and Česká spořitelna, a.s., Komerční banka, a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s. entered into a loan
agreement on pre-export financing of production of the wing centre section for Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. up to EUR 3,000 thousand (CZK 82,275
thousand) and a loan agreement on purchase of receivables up to EUR 2,500 thousand (CZK 68,562 thousand). The agreements have been transferred
to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. within the Spin-off project. At any time the sum of these two loans was required not to exceed a limit of EUR
4,500 thousand (CZK 123,412 thousand). The loans were fully paid on 28 June 2013.

On 2 September 2013, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Česká exportní banka, a.s., for refinancing of development and production
costs of prototypes within the Sonaca program; the limit of the loan is CZK 378,000 thousand. The loan matures on 31 December 2021 and bears
interest of 3M PRIBOR + margin. As at 31 December 2013, the drawn down element of the overdraft was CZK 338,346 thousand.
Pursuant to a general agreement on the provision of financial services and pertinent addenda entered into by and between the Company and
Komerční banka, a.s., on 23 September 2009, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 120,000 thousand (due until 30 September 2014)
to temporarily compensate for insufficient funds. The loan interest rate is O/n PRIBOR actual + margin. The loan was drawn and repaid on an
ongoing basis in 2013. As at 31 December 2013, the Company drew CZK 1,575 thousand of the overdraft.
Pursuant to an agreement on the credit line and an addendum no. 12 thereof entered into by and between the Company and Česká spořitelna, a.s.,
on 9 August 2012, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 50,000 thousand (due until 30 June 2014). The loan interest rate is 1M PRIBOR
+ margin. The loan was drawn and repaid on an ongoing basis in 2013. As at 31 December 2013, the Company drew CZK 40,982 thousand of the overdraft.
Pursuant to an agreement on the provision of loan, letters of credit and bank guarantees entered into by and between the Company and Československá obchodní banka, a.s., on 20 December 2013, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of CZK 50,000 thousand. The loan interest rate
is O/n PRIBOR + margin. The Company did not use the facility in 2013.
as at 31 december 2013, the above loans were secured by the pledge as follows:
• Pledge of receivables (see note 6);
• Pledge of current accounts (see note 8);
• Blank bills of exchange issued;
• Guarantee issued by Penta Investments Limited up to CZK 378 million;
• Right of pledge over receivables arising from the insurance policy for transportation insurance related to financed programs;
• Pledge of inventories (see note 5);
• Pledge of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.’s shares pursuant to the agreement with the parent company TULAROSA a.s.;
• Pledge of real estate (see note 4b).
Interest expense on all received bank loans totaled CZK 66,234 thousand for the 2013 accounting period.
based on the above revolving loan agreement for financing of the sikorsky program, the company is obliged to fulfill the following financial
covenants:
Covenant
net debt
Debt coverage
interest period after
31/ 12/ 2013)
Financial leverage

Calculation
(Bank loans – short-term financial assets) / EBITDA (including adjustments
relating to disposal/sale of inventory acquired prior to 2007)
(Annual net income + amortization/depreciation + change in provisions
and allowances – change in inventories – change in current receivables
+ change in current payables – CAPEx + interest expense) / (interest expense)
Total provisions and liabilities / Total assets

Required value
< 5.5:1
> 150%
< 65%

As at 31 December 2013, the Company met the above financial indicators.

On 11 February 2013, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Komerční banka, a.s., for refinancing of capital expenditures for “Redevelopment
and equipment of AV’s composite center” totaling CZK 60,000 thousand; the loan matures on 31 December 2017 and bears interest of 1M PRIBOR +
margin. As at 31 December 2013, the drawn down element of the overdraft was CZK 49,000 thousand, of which CZK 12,000 thousand are due in 2014.
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based on the above loan agreement with česká exportní banka, a.s., for financing of the sonaca program, the company is obliged to fulfill
the following financial covenants:

the following table summarizes face values and negative values of outstanding hedging derivatives as at 31 december 2013 (in czk thousands):

Positive

Fair value 2013
negative

-

1,272
10,206
11,478

As at 31 December 2013, the Company met the above financial indicators.

Face value
(in CZK thousands)
Foreign exchange contracts
Swaps
119,281
Options
414,708
Total derivatives held for hedging
533,989

as at 31 december 2013, the company was provided with the following bank guarantees (in czk thousands):

Hedging derivatives include derivatives that are designated as hedging instruments of assets and liabilities in a hedge of a foreign currency
or interest rate risks and that meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

Covenant
net debt
Financial leverage

Bank
Komerční banka, a.s.

ČSOB, a.s.
Total

Calculation
(Bank loans – Short-term financial assets) / EBITDA
Total provisions and liabilities / Total assets

Guarantee type
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment
advance payment
performance bond
performance bond
advance payment

Required value
< 5:1
< 70%

Valid until
22/ 07/ 2020
27/ 06/ 2014
06/ 05/ 2021
07/ 02/ 2022
10/ 02/ 2022
28/ 06/ 2022
03/ 02/ 2016
27/ 06/ 2023
11/ 06/ 2023
30/ 01/ 2015
30/ 01/ 2015
05/ 08/ 2023
31/ 08/ 2014
15/ 09/ 2014

Amount
12,341
2,743
2,206
5,896
2,084
960
2,743
5,062
1,015
7,309
7,308
22,642
3,196
106,539
182,044

As at 31 December 2013, the Company secured received bank guarantees by cash of CZK 44,628 thousand deposited in restricted bank accounts.

14. OTHER LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013, deferred income includes revenues from sales related to Sonaca and Alenia projects, which are recognized into income for
the year in which they were earned.

the following table summarizes face values and negative values of outstanding derivatives held for trading as at 31 december 2013 (in czk thousands):

(in CZK thousands)
Foreign exchange contracts
Options
Total derivatives held for trading

Face value
82,941
82,941

Positive
-

Fair value 2013
negative
3,043
3,043

16. InCOME TAxES
2013 accounting period
(in CZK thousands)
Profit/(loss) before taxes
544,725
Differences between book and tax depreciation
(62,008)
non-deductible expenses
Change in allowances
(627,773)
Change in provisions
92,725
Shortages and losses
33,251
Other (e.g. entertainment expenses)
43,445
Deduction of research and development costs
(24,365)
Taxable profit/(tax loss)
Current income tax rate
19%
Current tax expense
-

2011 accounting period
(in CZK thousands)
(55)
(55)
19%
-

15. DERIVATIVES
The Company has concluded several hedging derivative contracts as at 31 December 2013. The derivatives were revalued at fair value, with
negative fair values of the hedging derivatives being included in other payables and in differences arising from the revaluation of assets and liabilities
in the accompanying balance sheet.
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the company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in czk thousands):
Deferred
tax
Deferred tax items
asset
Difference between net book value of fixed assets for accounting and tax purposes 12,952
Other temporary differences:
Allowance against receivables and advances for inventory
5,373
Allowance against inventory
81,888
Allowance against fixed assets
27,458
Provisions
48,121
Tax loss carryforward
Total
175,792
net
175,792

31/ 12/ 2013
Deferred
tax
liability
-

Deferred
tax
asset
-

31/ 12/ 2011
Deferred
tax
liability
-

-

10
10
10

-

As at 31 December 2013 and 2011, the Company did not record a deferred tax asset of CZK 175,792 thousand and CZK 10 thousand, respectively on
the basis that its future recovery is uncertain.

The Company leases fixed assets, which are not recorded on the balance sheet (see note 3i).
as at 31 december 2013, assets which are being used by the company under operating leases consist of the following (in czk thousands):
Terms
Until 2017

Expense in the 2013
accounting period
3,255

The Company has a contractual relationship with mediators and records liabilities to them upon the completion of sales contracts. Pursuant to the sale
contract, the Company undertakes to pay the mediator a part of the income realized. It is not possible to determine the amount until contract completion.
As at 8 December 2005, AERO Vodochody a.s. concluded with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic a general agreement for after warranty
support for L-159 and L-39 aircraft. The contract was signed for a definite period until January 2029. Within the Spin-off project (see note 1),
the general agreement has been transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. According to this agreement, the Company is obliged to provide
services, maintenance and spare parts for planes already owned by the Army of the Czech Republic, and to assist during their modernization. In cases
of significant breaches of the contractual terms or in case of withdrawal from the contract, the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic is entitled
to claim a penalty and potential additional compensation from the Company. Under the terms of this agreement, a significant portion of its fixed
assets may not be freely disposed of (see note 4b).
The main production orders are realized on the basis of long-term contracts with suppliers. As at 31 December 2013, the commitments arising from
contracts concluded with suppliers amounted to CZK 1,225,145 thousand; of that the supplies for the Sikorsky project totaled CZK 801,004 thousand. These
contracts, as a rule, include a provision stipulating the amount of compensation that the Company is obliged to pay if it fails to fulfill contractual obligations or if it withdraws from the contract. In addition, the suppliers do not accept responsibility for possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.
The Company has concluded liability insurance for its own aviation activity, inter alia liability for operation of aircraft including accident insurance,
liability for hangars operation, liability for airport and navigation tower operation, and insurance for damage caused by faulty products. The overall
limit regarding insurance for damage caused by faulty products totals USD 500,000 thousand, including sublimits for selected projects, i.e. USD
250,000 thousand and USD 200,000 thousand for the Sikorsky and SAAB project, respectively. The globally effective insurance covers the major risks
emerging from the Company’s aeronautical operations.

17. LEASES

Description
Information technologies

18. COMMITMEnTS AnD COnTInGEnCIES

Expense in the 2011
accounting period
-

Cost
15,800

In 1998, AERO Vodochody a.s. together with GEO s.r.o. conducted an environmental audit, the result of which was, inter alia, quantification
of investments required for making the production ecofriendly and for remedy of environmental damage. The cost estimate totaled CZK 248,375
thousand. Based on the Contract for repayment of costs incurred in the settlement of environmental liabilities concluded between the Company and
the national Property Fund of the Czech Republic on 12 August 1998, the national Property Fund (currently the Ministry of Finance of the Czech
Republic) should cover those costs of the Company which are reasonably incurred up to CZK 2,691,926 thousand, which exceeds the estimate.
Within the Spin-off project, the contract has been transferred to AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.

assets which are being used by the company under finance leases (i.e. the assets are transferred to the company when the lease term expires)
as at 31 december 2013 consist of the following (in czk thousands):
Remaining payments as at 31/ 12/ 2013

Description
Machinery

Terms
Until 2021

Total lease
170,375

Payments
made as at
31/ 12/ 2013
121,471

Due within
one year
14,389

Due over
one year
34,515

19. REVEnUES
the breakdown of revenues from ordinary activities (in czk thousands):

Aviation production
non-aviation production
Total revenues
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Domestic
1,191,791
107,981
1,299,772

2013 accounting period
Foreign
5,292,717
5,292,717
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In the 2013 accounting period, the revenues of the Company were concentrated primarily with four main customers in the aviation industry, i.e. Sikorsky
Aircraft Corporation, the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic, Alenia Aermacchi S.p.A. and Empresa Brasileira de Aeronáutica S.A. (Embraer).
Subsidies received from the government for maintaining the Company’s operations totaling CZK 143,787 thousand in the 2013 accounting period are
recorded in other operating revenues.

long-term loans provided to related parties as at 31 december 2013 were as follows (in czk thousands):
Related party
AERO Vodochody a.s. – in CZK
Clester Trading a.s. (in EUR)
Clarex Investments a.s. – in EUR
Clarex Investments a.s. – in EUR
Total

Due dates/ Interest rates
2015/4.02%
2015/7.58%
2015/7.58%
2015/6.10%

Amount in original currency (in thousands)
CZK 42,766
EUR 167
EUR 800
EUR 300

2013
42,766
4,579
21,939
8,228
77,512

20. PERSOnnEL AnD RELATED ExPEnSES
short-term receivables from related parties as at 31 december 2013 were as follows (in czk thousands):

the breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows (in czk thousands):

Total personnel
1,439
1,171,175
384,319
31,230
312
1,587,036

Average number of employees
Wages and salaries
Social security and health insurance
Social cost
Bonuses to statutory representatives
Total personnel expenses

2013
Of which: Members of managerial bodies
13
67,841
14,524
1,753
112
84,231

The members and former members of statutory and supervisory bodies received total bonuses and other remuneration of CZK 852 thousand in the
2013 accounting period.

The members of statutory and supervisory bodies, directors and executive officers were granted no loans, guarantees, advances or other benefits
in the 2013 and 2011 accounting period and they do not hold any shares of the Company.
Benefits of certain members of the Company’s statutory bodies and management consist of the use of automobiles for private purposes.
The Company sells products, goods and provides services to related parties in the ordinary course of business. Sales including interest income were
CZK 91,979 thousand (of which interest income was CZK 4,014 thousand) in the 2013 accounting period.
summary of changes in long-term loans provided to related parties (in czk thousands):
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Due dates
2014
2014
2014
2014
2014
2014
2014
2014
2014

2013
7,404
3,306
7
1,042
2,128
176
58,958
22,379
8,893
104,293

As at 31 December 2013, the Company recorded a deposit in related party, PRIVAT BAnK AG der Raiffeisenlandesbank Oberosterreich, branch
Czech republic, of CZK 108 thousand.
The Company purchases products and receives services from related parties in the ordinary course of business. Purchases were CZK 126,721
thousand and CZK 0 thousand in the 2013 and 2011 accounting periods, respectively.

21. RELATED PARTy InFORMATIOn

Long-term receivables (from subsidiaries
/ group companies with majority control)

Related party
Amount in original currency (in thousands)
Clarex Investments a.s. - interest in EUR (estimated item)
270
Clarex Investments a.s. - advance payment in EUR
121
Clarex Investments a.s. - trade receivables in EUR
0.24
Clester Trading a.s. - interest in EUR
38
Letiště Vodochody a.s. - trade receivables in CZK
2,128
AERO Vodochody a.s. – interest in CZK
176
AERO Vodochody a.s. – trade receivables in CZK
58,958
AERO Vodochody a.s. – trade receivables in EUR
816
AB Facility a.s.
8,893
Total

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2011

Effect
of division

Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2013

-

28,940

46,503

-

2,069

77,512

short-term payables to related parties as at 31 december 2013 were as follows (in czk thousands):
Related party
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s. (interest)
Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Clarex Investments a.s.
AB Facility a.s.
AB Facility Services s.r.o.
Total

2013
2,773
62
5,763
8,544
5,691
1,187
24,020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

REPORT ON RELATIONS
AMONG RELATED ENTITIES

Inventories totaling CZK 983,832 thousand, which were not transferred during the spin-off from AERO Vodochody a.s. and were consumed by
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. between the decisive date and the date of the transformation entry in the Commercial Register were accounted
for as an internal transaction of inventory consumption of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. The Company’s payable of CZK 983,832 thousand
resulting from the inventory consumption was paid.

Report of the board of directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. regarding relations among related entities
drafted under Section §66a of Act no. 513/1991 Coll., Commercial Code.

At the end of 2013, the Company sold unusable inventories, whose value net of allowance was CZK 34,421 thousand, to AERO Vodochody a.s. The
selling price of the inventory totaling CZK 34,695 thousand was determined based on an expert’s opinion.

PART I. COnTROLLED AnD COnTROLLInG EnTITy

22. RESEARCH AnD DEVELOPMEnT COSTS

controlled entity
AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s., Registered seat Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště house no. 374, ZIP 250 70, Id. no.: 24194204
Registered in the commercial register kept by the Municipal Court in Prague, section B, file 17749 (hereinafter the “Company”)

Research and development costs amounted to CZK 660,003 thousand in the 2013 accounting period.

controlling entity
Penta Investments Group Limited, Registered seat: 47 Esplanade, St Helier, JE1 0BD, Jersey, Registration number Je 112 251

23. SIGnIFICAnT ITEMS OF InCOME STATEMEnT

PART II. RELATED EnTITIES

In the 2013 accounting period, other operating revenues comprise in particular revenues from ceded receivables (see note 6) and from received
subsidies (see note 19).

Related entities include the Company and entities directly or indirectly controlled thereby, as well as companies controlled by the controlling
company, i.e. entities controlled by Penta Investments Group Limited.

In the 2013 accounting period, other operating expenses include in particular the nominal value of ceded receivables (see note 6), shortages and
damages and insurance fees.
In the 2013 accounting period, other finance income and expense consist mainly of foreign currency gains and losses.
Statutory auditor’s fees for assurance services are stated in the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.

PART III. REPORT PERIOD
This report covers the period from 1st January 2012 to 31st December 2013.

24. STATEMEnT OF CASH FLOWS (SEE APPEnDIx 1)
The cash flow statement was prepared under the indirect method.

25. STATEMEnT OF CHAnGES In EQUITy (SEE nOTE 10)
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REPORT ON RELATIONS
AMONG RELATED ENTITIES

PART IV. COnTRACTS AnD AGREEMEnTS AMOnG THE RELATED EnTITIES

Entity
AERO Vodochody a.s.

Following agreements were entered among the related entities in the report period in the period from 1.1.2012 to 31.12.2013:
Entity
Penta Investments Limited
(Cyprus)
Tularosa a.s.

name of agreement
Agreement on support of project no. 22250
during implementation of supported export
as per credit agreement no. 22 682

Signed on
2.9.2013

Tularosa a.s.

Intercreditor Agreement

20.12.2013

Tularosa a.s.

Agreement on termination of reinsurance

20.12.2013

Clarex Investments a.s.
Clester Trading a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.
AERO Vodochody a.s.

Amendment no. 3
to Credit Agreement dated 16.9.2009
Amendment no. 2
to Credit Agreement dated 22.7.2010
Credit Agreement dated
20.8.2013 (Aero as the creditor)
Credit Agreement dated
20.8.2013 (Aero as the debtor)
Lease Agreement dated 26.4.2013
regarding lease of a water neutralizer
Lot Lease Agreement
dated 26.4.2013
nonresidential Premises Lease
Agreement dated 7.2.2013
Services Agreement

19.7.2013
19.7.2013
20.8.2013
20.8.2013
26.4.2013
26.4.2013
7.2.2013
30.4.2013

Performance rendered

Term Damage

Financing
As per duration of
SOnACA program agreement or credit
Financing S-76 and As per duration of
Black Hawk program agreement or credit
Termination of credit
nonrecurring
for S-76 program with ČS
Credit
16.9.2015
prolongation
Credit
22.7.2015
prolongation

none
none
none
none
none

AERO Vodochody a.s.
Penta Investments Limited
(Cyprus)
Penta Investments Limited
(Jersey)
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Tularosa a.s.
Penta Investments Limited
(Cyprus)
Penta Investments Limited
(Jersey)
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Tularosa a.s.

name of agreement
nonresidential Premises Lease
Agreement dated 30.4.2013
Services Agreement
dated 30.4.2013

Signed on

Amendment no. 2
to Project Support Agreement
dated 23rd September 2010

14.6.2013

Amendment no. 1
to Intercreditor Agreement
dated 23rd September 2010

14.6.2013

30.4.2013
30.4.2013

Performance rendered
Term Damage
Lease of nonresidential
indefinite period
none
premises
Rendering services in the field of IT,
indefinite period
none
accounting, consultancy, SM and others
Throughout finanAdjustment of rights and duties cing the Sikorsky
and transferring Penta’s guarantee
program by
none
after the spin-off and merger a bank club of ČS
as a part of financing the company
and KB (until
20.12.2013)
Throughout finanAdjustment of rights and duties cing the Sikorsky
and the Intercreditor Agreement
program by
none
after the spin-off and merger a bank club of ČS
as a part of financing the company
and KB (until
20.12.2013)

Financing

30.8.2015

none

Financing

30.8.2015

none

PART V. OTHER ACTIOnS AMOnG THE RELATED EnTITIES

Lease of water
neutralizer
Lease
of lot
Lease of nonresidential
premises
Services related
to business contracts

indefinite
period
indefinite
period

none

As of 1. 5. 2013, a part of AERO Vodochody a.s. was separated and subsequently merged with AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. Please, find more
information on the spin-off and subsequent merger in the project filed with the Commercial Register of the Czech Republic.

none

30.4.2013

none

PART VI. OTHER MEASURES ADOPTED AMOnG THE RELATED EnTITIES

indefinite
period

none

The company is not aware of any other measures adopted in benefit of the related entities.

PART VII. COnCLUSIOn
The board of directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. declares that it has exercised due care when identifying the related entities for the
purpose of drafting this report, especially by requesting information from the controlling persons both before and after the change of ownership
of the Company regarding identity of entities controlled by such entities in the report period.
The board of directors of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s. declares that all monetary sums and corresponding considerations provided based upon
legal relations listed in parts IV. – VI. of this report were paid and rendered in the usual amounts. This report has been presented for review to the
supervisory board and the auditor charged with auditing the financial statements as prescribed by applicable statute.

In Odolena Voda on 31st March 2014
Ladislav Šimek
Chairman of the board of directors
of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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Petr Brychta
Director
of AERO Vodochody AEROSPACE a.s.
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